MONITORING AND EVALUATION AND PERFORMANCE OF ENVIRONMENTAL PROJECTS IN KENYA: A CASE OF A SELECTED PROJECT AT THE INSTITUTE FOR LAW AND ENVIRONMENTAL GOVERNANCE

ATAKOS LORRAINE LEONIDA

A Research Report Submitted in Partial Fulfillment of the Requirement for the Award of Master of Arts Degree in Project Planning and Management in the University of Nairobi.

DECLARATION

This research report is my original work and has never been presented for an award in any other university.

Signature Atakos Lorraine Leonida L50/34667/2019 Date: 7th November 2022.

This research report has been submitted for examination with my approval as the University supervisor.

Johne

Signature

Date: 10/11/2022

Dr. John Mbugua

Senior Lecturer, Department of Education and Distance studies

University of Nairobi

DEDICATION

This research report is dedicated first and foremost to my parents Mr. and Mrs. Atakos who, laid down a strong foundation for my education and inspired me to always push on to greater heights. I also wish to dedicate it to my entire family members because this work would not have been possible without your support, trust and believe in me. I appreciate your support, prayers, and words of encouragement.

I pray that God will bless every one of you.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

I want to thank the omnipotent God first and foremost for the gift of life, knowledge, and understanding, protection, divine favor, grace and good health to prepare this research report to this end. Additionally, I would want to express my gratitude to Dr. John Mbugua, my university's supervisor, for his supervision, prompt responses, and relentless efforts that have brought me this far. I also wish to acknowledge Dr. Lydiah Wambugu who, added significant value to my life by imparting to me research methods knowledge and skills.

Additionally, I wish to thank Prof. Charles Rambo, Prof. Raphael Nyonje and Dr. Moses Otieno from the Department of Management Science and Project Planning for laying down the foundation for this research work during the research seminar.

Finally, I wish to acknowledge the support from my friends, Peris Njoki and Benard Omondi, who inspired my journey and reminded me of the need to scale great heights.

DECLARATION	ii
DEDICATION	iii
ACKNOWLEDGEMENT	iv
TABLE OF CONTENTS	v
LIST OF TABLES	viii
LIST OF FIGURES	ix
ABBREVIATIONS AND ACRONYMS	X
ABSTRACT	xi
CHAPTER ONE	1
INTRODUCTION	1
1.1 Background to the study	1
1.2 Statement of the Problem	3
1.3 Purpose of the study	4
1.4 Objectives of the study	5
1.5 Research questions	5
1.6 Significance of the study	6
1.7 Delimitations of the study	6
1.8 Limitations of the study	7
1.9 Assumptions of the study	7
1.10 Definition of significant terms	8
CHAPTER TWO	9
LITERATURE REVIEW	9
2.1 Introduction	9
2.2 Performance of Environmental Projects	9
2.3 Expertise in M&E and Performance of Environmental Projects	11
2.4 Stakeholder Participation and Performance of Environmental Projects.	13
2.5 Project Budget and Performance of Environmental Projects	15
2.6 M&E Structure and Performance of Environmental Projects	16
2.7 Theoretical Framework	18
2.7.1 Human Capital Theory	19
2.7.2 Stakeholder Theory	19
2.8 Conceptual Framework	20
2.9 Knowledge Gaps	22

TABLE OF CONTENTS

2.10 Summary of the chapter						
CHAPTER THREE	25					
RESEARCH METHODOLOGY	25					
3.1 Introduction 3.2 Research Design						
						3.3 Target Population
3.4 Sample Size	27					
3.5 Research Instruments	28					
3.6 Data Collection Procedures	31					
3.7 Data Analysis Techniques	32					
3.8 Ethical Consideration						
3.9 Operational definition of variables	34					
CHAPTER FOUR						
DATA ANALYSIS, PRESENTATION, AND INTERPRETATION						
4.1 Introduction						
4.1.1 Questionnaire Return Rate						
4.2 Background Information						
4.2.1 Distribution of Respondents by Gender						
4.2.2 Distribution of Respondents by Age	37					
4.2.3 Distribution of Respondents by Highest Academic Qualification						
4.2.4 Distribution of Respondents by Period of Service						
4.3 Expertise in M&E and Performance of Environmental Projects	40					
4.3.1 Ability to Collect Primary M&E Data from Environmental Projects	40					
4.4 Stakeholder Participation and Performance of Environmental Projects	42					
4.5 Project budget and performance of environmental projects	44					
4.6 M&E Structure and performance of environmental projects	45					
CHAPTER FIVE	47					
SUMMARY OF FINDINGS, DISCUSSIONS, CONCLUSIONS AND RECOMM	ENDATIONS 47					
5.1 Introduction	47					
5.2 Summary of the Findings	47					
5.2.1 Expertise in M&E and Performance of Environmental Projects	48					
5.2.2 Stakeholder Participation and Performance of Environmental Projects	48					
5.2.3 Project Budget and Performance of Environmental Projects	49					
5.2.4 M&E Structure and performance of environmental projects	49					

5.3 Discussion of the findings	49
5.3.1 Expertise in M&E and Performance of Environmental Projects	49
5.3.2 Stakeholder Participation and Performance of Environmental Projects	50
5.3.3 Project Budget and Performance of Environmental Projects	51
5.3.4 M&E Structure and performance of environmental projects	52
5.4 Conclusion	53
5.5 Recommendations	54
5.6 Suggestions for further research	55
REFERENCES	56
APPENDICES	62
Appendix I: Letter of Introduction	62
Appendix II: NACOSTI Research Permit	63
Appendix III: Research questionnaire	64
Appendix IV: Interview schedule	69

LIST OF TABLES

Table 2. 1: Research Knowledge Gap Matrix	23
Table 3. 1: Target Population	27
Table 3. 2: Reliability Analysis	31
Table 3. 3: Operational definition of variables	35
Table 4. 1: Questionnaire Return Rate	36
Table 4. 2: Distribution of Respondents by Gender	37
Table 4. 3: Distribution of Respondents by Age	
Table 4. 4: Distribution of Respondents by Highest Academic Qualification	
Table 4. 5: Distribution of Respondents by Period of Service	
Table 4. 6: Respondent's Professional Skills on Monitoring and Evaluation	40
Table 4. 7: Ability to Collect Primary M&E Data	40
Table 4. 8: Expertise in M&E and performance of environmental projects	41
Table 4. 9: Role of stakeholders M&E in environmental projects	42
Table 4. 10: Stakeholder participation and performance of environmental projects	43
Table 4. 11: Project budget and performance of environmental projects	44
Table 4. 12: M&E Structure and performance of environmental projects	45

LIST OF FIGURES

Figure 2.1:	Conceptual Framework	
-------------	-----------------------------	--

ABBREVIATIONS AND ACRONYMS

ILEG:	Institute for Law and Environmental Governance
M&E:	Monitoring and Evaluation
MHEST:	Ministry of Higher Education, Science and Technology
NEMA:	National Environment Management Authority
NGO:	Non-Governmental Organization
OECD:	Organization for Economic Co-operation and Development
PMBOK:	Project Management Body of Knowledge
SPSS:	Statistical Package for Social Sciences

ABSTRACT

The importance of monitoring and evaluation as a key instrument for program performance has grown. Continuous project progress monitoring seems to increase, among other things, the likelihood of project success. In order to improve project performance, several businesses have worked to incorporate an M&E system. Many nations have created laws and regulations to safeguard the environment and make sure that human activities have as little influence as possible on it in reaction to the growing environmental deterioration. This study aimed to determine the influence of monitoring and evaluation on the performance of environmental projects in Kenya, and specifically on a selected project at the Institute for Law and Environmental Governance. The study set out to answer the following questions on the impact of M&E expertise, stakeholder participation, project budget, and M&E structure on the success of environmental projects at the Institute of Environmental Studies (IES) in Kenya. A descriptive survey method was used for this investigation. The target population was 40 and included project managers, project assistants, monitoring and evaluation officers, project field officers, and other personnel involved in implementing environmental projects at the Institute for Law and Environmental Governance. Additionally, the sample included 40 personnel, and ethical considerations in research were considered. The data was collected with the use of a questionnaire and an interview guide, and it was afterwards analyzed using descriptive statistics and the software that comes with the Statistical Package for the Social Sciences (SPSS). These measurements included the central tendency and the percentages as well as frequency distributions as well as measures of dispersion. According to the study findings, employees in Kenya at the Institute for Law and Environmental Governance had the necessary experience to collect primary M&E data from environmental projects within the required time, stakeholder participation in monitoring and evaluation is essential for positive project outcomes to be realized, M&E activities should be budgeted for so that the resources needed to carry them out are made available and that an M&E structure enhances completion and success of environmental projects. The study concluded that expertise in M&E, Stakeholders' participation, Project budget and M&E Structure affect all performance of environmental projects in Kenya at the Institute for Law and Environmental Governance. The study recommended that the management at the Institute for Law and Environmental Governance should ensure that all the individuals involved in M&E exercise undergo continuous capacity development, all environmental projects have an efficient stakeholder engagement framework, M&E activities for environmental projects are budgeted for in advance so that the resources needed to carry them out are made available, and that the established M&E structure is based on best practices that promote evidence-based public trust and decision-making.

CHAPTER ONE

INTRODUCTION

1.1 Background to the study

Globally, monitoring and evaluation are important techniques for improving project planning and management quality. They have become basic parts of worldwide endeavors to accomplish ecological, financial, and social manageability. Maintainability principles and guidelines for M&E are crucial at the public and international levels for making, verifying, and documenting on environmental, fiscal, and social patterns, tracking progress toward aims, and influencing policy and approaches (Behn, 2018).

An ecologically based project has some key qualities, which differentiates it from other projects. The clearest difference is that an ecological based project needs to accomplish a particular ecological target. As a result of the increasing environmental deterioration, different countries throughout the world have adopted legislation and regulations to govern construction activities and ensure that building projects are completed in a safe and environmentally friendly manner, and that other human activities have minimal impact on the environment (Cunningham, 2020). Therefore, NGOs and other community-based organizations are now heavily implementing environmental projects.

Environmental projects are significant when it comes to environmental protection and, subsequently, life on Earth. The projects empower and create awareness to communities on issues pertaining to environmental problems. This empowerment also involves making the communities and governments to take an active role in environmental happenings and assume responsibility for the governance and protection of environmental, ancient, and social beliefs (Gunduz et al., 2017).

According to Vision 2030, Kenya's road to success comprises forging a fair and cohesive community as well as fostering enjoyable, equitable social progress in a safe and secure environment. The environment is one of eight crucial socioeconomic areas on which this search will have a major impact. By 2030, Kenya wants to create a nation that is peaceful, clean, and ecologically conscious. The goal for 2012 was to increase forest cover from the current three percent level to four percent. Considering the need for monitoring and evaluation in achieving global environmental sustainability, environmental projects really haven't performed as well as they could (Santin, 2019). This is primarily due to insufficient and, in some cases, non-existent monitoring and evaluation systems used to track and measure the performance of environmental projects, as well as a lack of stable M&E structures within organizations and a monitoring and evaluation project budget apportionment during the planning and design phase of most environmental projects.

Most environmental efforts in Kenya have failed miserably. Water and energy are critical inputs in the country's economic operations, and their relevance in achieving Vision 2030 goals cannot be emphasized. Natural resources are vital to the country's subsistence and cash economies, and as a result, they must be managed in a sustainable manner (Danida, 2020).

The goal of the current research was to ascertain how monitoring and assessment affected the performance of environmental projects in Kenya, on one chosen project at the Institute for Law and Environmental Governance. The selected project was The Access Initiative (TAI). The project was selected using the purposive sampling technique since the study purposed to focus on particular characteristics of environmental projects that were of interest, and which were the most effective to answer the research problems. To a significant extent, this is due to the fact that, to begin, there had been no study conducted on the effect that monitoring and evaluation had on the effectiveness of environmental programs. There have been various environmental

projects that were in diverse levels of implementation; some of them were finished, others were in progress, some halted; a fair amount were at early stages of execution and some still on the planning phase.

Moreover, since the beginning of the Institute for Law and Environmental Governance, the organization had received substantial financial resources coupled with changes in stakeholders that they work with, and staff that help monitor and evaluate the projects' results. However, no academic study had examined the extent to which these variables influenced the performance of these environmental projects. Concisely, this study purposed to help to design effective, efficient, and powerful results-oriented programs, environmental projects and activities that would generate the intended benefit.

1.2 Statement of the Problem

Globally, there are various projects and initiatives geared towards environmental management, but their performance has largely been poor. Environmental projects in most developing nations face a variety of challenges, including poor leadership, a lack of institutional structures, and insufficient finances to carry out comprehensive monitoring and assessment of their varied programs.

Because of the poor methods that have been used, environmental project monitoring and assessment procedures in Kenya are insufficient. This hinders the achievement of the Vision goals as well as the Millennium Development Goals (MDGs) (KNBS, 2021).

Many environmental projects are not properly monitored because of lack of funds or lack of expertise, even though Kenya's government's environmental policies stress the importance of including environmental concerns at the planning stage of all development projects, there is often little follow-up on the impact of these projects.

Consequently, government and donor agencies' well-intentioned development initiatives are not contributing towards the intended outcomes on the environment and the state of humanity condition. According to the FAO/UNFPA survey on the state of environmental projects in Kenya, any further initiatives in environmental management and environmental projects should be backed up by genuine demonstrations of stakeholder participation, adequate project budget and expertise in M&E, and commitment matching the seriousness of the situation.

It is estimated that by the year 2030, Kenya will only be able to feed 17 percent of its population using its own land and environmental resources. This will require a low level of inputs, but the country will not be able to produce sufficient food for its entire population even when using an intermediate level of inputs (Milas and Asrat, 2019:37). However, as Milas and Asrat point out, in the medium and long term, the consequence is typically poorer production, as well as increased land degradation and increasing desertification. This is mostly due to the insufficient monitoring and supervision of environmental programs.

According to Doute et.al, (2021:12) as of the year 2021, only about 2.3 per cent of environmental projects in Kenya carry out regular checking and assessment of their activities. It is against this background that this research study focused on determining the influence of monitoring and evaluation on the performance of environmental projects in Kenya and to what level it influences environmental projects' performance.

1.3 Purpose of the study

This study sought to determine the influence of monitoring and evaluation on the performance of environmental projects in Kenya: a case of a selected project at the Institute for Law and Environmental Governance.

4

1.4 Objectives of the study

The study was guided by the following objectives:

- i. To determine the extent to which expertise in M&E influence the performance of environmental projects in Kenya at the Institute for Law and Environmental Governance.
- To establish the influence of stakeholder participation on the performance of environmental projects in Kenya at the Institute for Law and Environmental Governance.
- iii. To establish the extent to which project budget influence the performance of environmental projects in Kenya at the Institute for Law and Environmental Governance.
- iv. To determine the influence of an M&E structure on the performance of environmental projects in Kenya at the Institute for Law and Environmental Governance.

1.5 Research questions

This study sought to provide answers to the following research questions:

- i. To what extent does expertise in M&E influence the performance of environmental projects in Kenya at the Institute for Law and Environmental Governance?
- ii. How does stakeholder participation influence the performance of environmental projects in Kenya at the Institute for Law and Environmental Governance?
- iii. To what extent does project budget influence the performance of environmental projects in Kenya at the Institute for Law and Environmental Governance?

5

iv. How does an M&E structure influence the performance of environmental projects in Kenya at the Institute for Law and Environmental Governance?

1.6 Significance of the study

By providing knowledge on how monitoring and evaluation might affect the effectiveness of their environmental initiatives, the study was supposed to assist the management team of the Institute for Law and Environmental Governance. Furthermore, it was anticipated that the research project's results would improve management's ability and stakeholders' responses, which would improve monitoring and assessment and increase the success of environmental initiatives.

In Kenya, it was anticipated that the Ministry of Environment and Forestry would be able to learn more about the important role that M&E play in environmental projects. This would aid in the formulation and implementation of policies that would improve the effectiveness of M&E of all environmental projects, as well as project success, in an endeavor to improve the environment and realize Vision 2030.

Additionally, donors in the environmental projects field were expected be able to figure out how efficient their inputs are, especially the financial resources, are converted into outputs.

This study was also anticipated to form a foundation in which further study on the performance of environmental projects can be carried out. Therefore, the study would provide a basis and guidelines for further related research.

1.7 Delimitations of the study

The research study delimits itself by narrowing down the research's scope to environmental projects in Kenya. Further, the study delimits itself by focusing on the specific objectives that have been adopted for this study. These objectives are: to examine the influence of expertise

in M&E, stakeholders' participation, project budget and to assess the influence of an M&E structure on the performance of environmental projects at Institute for Law and Environmental Governance.

Finally, it delimits itself by making use of the primary tools of data collection, which included surveys as they were easy to comprehend, and one can quickly and efficiently respond to the questions by using a questionnaire.

1.8 Limitations of the study

Following are some difficulties the researcher ran across while doing this research:

Fear of victimization, whereby some respondents were reluctant to provide accurate information because they feared it may be used against them. There were also worries about respondents' privacy, which would have compromised their candor in submitting information.

By providing a letter of introduction from the university assuring the responders that this study was exclusively intended for academic reasons, the researcher was able to minimize the aforementioned restrictions. This was a crucial ethical concern in study, and the researcher reassured them that all the data they supplied would be maintained as secret. No responder was so harmed as a consequence of his or her contributions to illuminating or enhancing this research.

1.9 Assumptions of the study

This study used the assumption that survey respondents will provide accurate information while completing and responding to surveys. This is due to the fact that they were required to answer the questions truthfully.

The study also made the assumption that everyone who received a questionnaire was literate, capable of reading, understanding, and responding to its questions, as well as ready to

participate in the study by completing the provided questionnaires and providing the necessary data.

1.10 Definition of significant terms

Expertise: This is the level at which staff can comprehend and perform such tasks of the project and conduct monitoring and evaluation.

M&E structure: This refers to a well-defined design within organizations that incorporates the function of monitoring and evaluation team in the departmental working procedure.

Monitoring and Evaluation: This is a combination of data collection and analysis, as well as determining whether a program or intervention has reached its goals. Monitoring and evaluation were employed to examine the performance of environmental projects in this study.

Performance of Environmental Projects: This is the result or outcomes that are there due to an organization's strategic activities which are conducted to manage or not to manage the organization's impact on the nature or the ecosystem in a short-term project having a clear start and finish period. It can be measured in respect to the level of stakeholder satisfaction, cost performance index and level of project sustainability.

Project budget: This is the amount of funding designated to monitoring and evaluation activities. It indicates the most money a company is ready to invest in monitoring and evaluation of a given project, program or item, and it is a limit that is not to be exceeded by the employee authorized to charge expenses to the budget line.

Stakeholder Participation: This is the procedure for including persons who could be impacted by a project's choices and/or have influence over how those decisions are carried out. Consequently, having a shared knowledge and taking part in the project's decision-making process.

CHAPTER TWO

LITERATURE REVIEW

2.1 Introduction

A review of research on environmental project monitoring, assessment, and performance is presented in this section. This study presents a theoretical analysis and identifies gaps in the examined literature that, if filled, would assist to guarantee the success of environmental initiatives. The chapter also presents the dependent variable success of environmental initiatives and the independent variables expertise in M&E, stakeholder involvement, project budget, and M&E structure. The conceptual framework served as a demonstration of the link between the variables.

2.2 Performance of Environmental Projects

A project is an endeavor undertaken in order to create a one-of-a-kind product or service that brings change and has advantages primarily to the target group (Anandajayasekeram and Gebremedhin, 2019). The finite nature of this project stands in stark contrast to procedures, or rather tasks, that are either long lasting or not.

The primary sign of an effective environmental project is when it has had the preferred ecological impact and has benefited the desired objectives or community. This is strongly related to project management achievement, which entails managing the project to the agreed-upon time, scope, budget, and quality. The formalization of environmental issues received a lot of traction since the Brundtland report's formulation of the sustainable development concept. Environmental performance has since then been introduced in order to justify the "green" contribution of an organization to its surrounding environment. However, while creating projects and making judgments, its multi-dimensional elements can be challenging, without the impact of monitoring and evaluation.

Effective project supervision contributes towards the performance of the organization's environmental projects, thereby obtaining competitive advantages; strengthening the organization's status; expanding market share; as well as achieving stipulated revenues and profits in the long term (Al-Tmeemy, 2021). Environmental project performance is measured and evaluated using a variety of performance indicators that can be connected to a variety of factors such as time, client approval and revisions, firm performance, cost, health and safety, and quality (Cheung et al. 2018).

During the planning phase of a project, the benchmarks that will be used to evaluate the success of environmental projects are established in order to provide direction to the activities of the project and ensure that all of the project's stakeholders are concentrating on the same objective.

Shenhar (2021) divided performance into four categories. These are time efficiency, cost, quality, and production efficiency. According to the Green Economy Strategy and Implementation Plan – Kenya (2016 – 2030), a study conducted on the National Environmental Projects Strategy (NEPS) and published in accordance with section 49 and 50 of the Environmental Management and Coordination Act it was discovered that appropriate institutional mechanisms for implementing environmental sector reforms were not fully functional. In most places of Kenya, there was also poor project design for environmental management and protection. To properly carry out the environment reforms, there is need for a comprehensive national monitoring and evaluation systems for environmental projects and programs which is lacking. Further, there is no proper-documented investment plans in the environment sector.

The results show that well-designed programs are required, along with ongoing M&E, to bring about significant change and enhance the effectiveness of environmental projects for all Kenyans.

Although desertification in Kenya can be attributed to the combined effects of climate and human impact, the basic problems underlying the more immediate causes are socio-economic and political in nature (Darkoh2016:18). The rapid growth of human and animal populations in the arid and semi-arid lands (ASAL) and modern influences have disrupted traditional systems of land use which were usually well adapted to the fragile ecosystems causing great damage to them. The government and people of Kenya however are manifesting an increasing awareness of the problems of land degradation and desertification. To contain them, emphasis is being placed on strengthening public participation in environmental programs and projects such as afforestation and soil and water conservation projects.

Consequently, the performance of environmental projects can be enhanced by integrating concepts from the independent variables, which include expertise in M&E, Involvement of stakeholders in M&E, funding for M&E, and structure availability for M&E. In addition, motivated by the requirement to perform better, most project managers managing environmental projects have made significant attempts on improving operations within the implementing organizations.

2.3 Expertise in M&E and Performance of Environmental Projects

Implementation of M&E is significantly influenced by the organization's HR department's expertise in undertaking constant M&E as well as the level of employee engagement. This influences decision-making as well as the production, communication, and perception of evaluation lessons. Thus, having experienced and knowledgeable personnel is important for the sustainability of environmental projects especially in developing countries such as Kenya. This necessitates that the developing evaluators receive technical education and training in M&E. The ability of evaluators to execute and monitor M&E activities effectively needs to be improved through both formal training as well as on training (Vanesa and Gala 2015)

Cognitive capability and communication skills are the two most important qualities for evaluators. Executive and program managers must also receive technical M&E training for them to believe and use M&E information and, specifically, to foster a culture of results within institutions (Lopez et al., 2016)

A research on the factors influencing efficient M&E of county government-funded environmental initiatives in Nakuru County, found that employees' M&E competence has an effect on how M&E are implemented. Mushori (2015) indicated that by employing a collaborative approach to M&E activities, the technical team transfers its technical expertise to other stakeholders. Likewise, he suggested that training be done in order to improve the M&E efficiency of environmental programs.

According to a study on capacity building by Mibey (2015), it should be a big part of the project all over the country. According to a study on the factors that affect M&E implementation in the Kazi kwa vijana project," more funds must be spent on developing and training human capital in the key technical region of M&E.

Opportunities for training and development in M&E are available via a variety of channels, including the public sector, the corporate sector, educational institutions, professional groups, job postings, and mentorship programs (Lopez, et. al, 2016). They also claim that assessment specialists have the expertise to supervise and provide support with outcomes monitoring and measuring. They came to the conclusion that there is a strong association between M&E execution and M&E competency.

According to Mukhererjee (2019), meeting technical requirements necessitates a dedication to ensuring that human capacity is of the desired quality by eliminating barriers to learning and introducing learning incentives, monitoring staff performance through routine evaluations, aiming for staff continuity, and finding a highly qualified individual to oversee the entire process by selecting the appropriate candidates, educating your staff, and engaging specialized outside consultants. Therefore, M&E expertise among staff is crucial for carrying out environmental practices, particularly in Kenya.

2.4 Stakeholder Participation and Performance of Environmental Projects

People who have a financial or other interest in the projects or programs are stakeholders in M&E. They are those who base their decisions on the knowledge and insights gained through M&E. They include the local area whose circumstance the venture expects to improve; project field staff who do the real exercises; project administrators who manage project execution; funders and other Project personnel who decide the undertaking's strategy; allies, pundits, and different partners who affect the task's current circumstance (Davies, 2018).M&E data collection systems should be one that all the project partners can use effectively and get the desired results (Garbutt, 2021). The World Bank (2018) recognizes that participatory approaches are essential in monitoring and evaluation for any development to be realized. This is because the quality of information derived out of participatory approaches' is also enriched. In order to guarantee success of the program, collaborative M&E is essential.

Stakeholders' roles are acknowledged by IFAD (2020). In other words, they offer critical insights on objectives and effective approach during project's layout, making plans, execution, and M&E stages. Each of these bolster community ownerships of the projects and ensure the possibility of a lengthy effect.

According to research by Murungi (2016) on the effect of M&E on the effectiveness of donorfunded initiatives in Kajiado County, the key project participants are essential to improving project performance. As a consequence, active involvement from all stakeholders is required for effective M&E implementation. They found that involving stakeholders, especially keeping them involved actively throughout the project's lifespan, increased community ownership and sustainable development. Based on the study, participants must be involved in all phases of making plans and the project's execution and their needs must be given special consideration in to ensure that they have been fully engaged.

Stakeholder participation, according to Musomba et al. (2020), is essential for the success of M&E activities. He argued that for M&E activities to be implemented successfully, stakeholder involvement must begin at the planning stage and continue through the project's how, why and what of programme implementation typically gives people more control and makes more different stakeholders feel socially connected a significant way, according to Donaldson and Lipesy (2022). Chitere and Ireri (2014) said that involving stakeholders means giving them more power, especially when it comes to figuring out what resources and needs they have, planning how to use those resources, and putting development ideas into action.

Community-based environmental initiatives in Africa have outperformed other programs in other regions, according to the World Bank (2019). Only one out of every five community-based environmental projects, on the other hand, was expected to be sustainable. The World Bank's Community–Driven Development (CDD) team for Africa launched a project in 18 African villages to assist them in maintaining the outcomes of their community-based environmental projects. The idea is that stakeholder participation helps them establish their own resources and tools which helps the program succeed and reduces reliance on outside help or donations. The paper discovered that the long-term survival of environmental sub-projects was improved by a straightforward community M&E structure. As a result, the connections between the implementation of community development projects, their monitoring and supervision, assessment, and the reappraisal of regional growth indexes to more intently match community development prerequisites are strengthened.

Proudlock, Ramalingam and Sandison (2019) discovered that stakeholder involvement in M&E can greatly improve M&E activity implementation, which increases program performance. They also stated that involving stakeholders increases program ownership. They pointed out that the beneficiaries are in charge of their own growth and, as a result, are the best decision makers in their own circumstances. They arrived at the conclusion that poor project performance is a direct result of neglecting to include key players. The involvement of stakeholders, according to Patton (2018), should be carefully handled since too much could have an unbalanced impact on the evaluation process, whereas too little could lead to assessors influencing the process and have unfavorable effects. They argued that M&E leads to successful program implementation regardless of the program's implementation level. However, it was advised that the M&E process has to be interactive, should reflect the needs of the community, and should pique interest among the public in the implementation phase of the project's M&E.

2.5 Project Budget and Performance of Environmental Projects

Globally, developed nations and countries have designed tough, efficient, and effective monitoring and evaluation methods and indices as a result of their substantial decentralization of resources (Lahey, 2015). The institutionalization of monitoring and evaluation has been helped by the supply of enough resources to local governments in these countries. As a consequence, a platform for carefully monitoring and reviewing M&E frameworks are created using the Results-Based M&E system. With few openings for dishonest people or impromptu efforts, the system offers a great tool for monitoring all tasks in a methodical way.

Building the capacity for monitoring and evaluation activities has become a key issue of concern, according to Kidombo et al. (2017), who assessed the effect of allocating resources for M&E activities. This is done in an effort to make sure that monitoring and evaluation

activities have some sort of meaningful impact. This capability entails, among other things, ensuring that M&E operations are budgeted for so that the resources necessary to carry them out may be made available when and where they are required.

Gitonga goes on to say that for environmental projects, the more participative M&E is, the more money it will cost. This is because with more stakeholders on board, the M&E budget is likely to go up. According to Barasa (2014), it is critical to include the M&E budget in the strategic plan for environmental projects. This is because including the projects in the strategic plan ensures that the projects are well planned for and have adequate funding. He also points out that the budget for M&E initiatives ought to be inclusive to account for all expenditure and costs forecasted to take place. Financial availability is critical for the successful implementation of environmental projects, particularly in developing nations like Kenya.

Another study by Murei, Kidombo and Gakuu, (2017) which concentrated on the connection between the M&E budget and the performance of horticulture projects, the study adopted analysis of data which utilized quantitative as well as qualitative data collection tools. The study concluded that high performance of horticulture projects was associated with the available monitoring and evaluation budget. The research paper also recommended the fact that overall horticulture projects budget should be delineated from the monitoring and evaluation budget to accord it autonomy of use to have a positive skewed project performance (Murei, et al, 2017).

2.6 M&E Structure and Performance of Environmental Projects

There is a framework that offers specific instructions regarding what the accessibility of an M&E framework in institutions should resemble like for the better execution of M&E operations. A framework is a critical tool for M&E projects because it specifies how the

program manager should function by outlining the steps necessary to achieve the desired results. By illustrating the links between vital execution elements and outlining the external and internal variables that could have an effect on the successful completion of a project, a framework improves understanding of the objectives of the project (Kerzner, 2018). Ideas may benefit from a strong M&E framework by being evaluated to see whether they are the best and most suitable to implement via project plans and goals. The M&E system should be detailed on the projected budget, the technical skills needed by project workers, and information to tell project funders about how the project will be carried out (2021) Guijt et al.

In addition, an M&E structure incorporates the use of a number of different methods and approaches, some of which are supplementary to one another or serve as replacements for one another, while others are either expansive or restrictive in their reach (World Bank, 2022). A broad range of techniques and sources of information are available for an assessor to select from when performing cross-validation of data (Nabris, 2020). The M&E system employs a wide range of tools, including formal surveys, quick evaluation techniques, participation techniques, cost-benefit and cost-effectiveness evaluations, performance reviews, impact assessments, and a method based on a logical framework. The information requested by the project organization, dictates which instruments are used. The availability of a good structure for M&E can determine its success or failure. Research was carried out by Wachamba (2019) on the elements that determine successful monitoring and evaluation systems in nongovernmental organizations located within Nairobi County. According to the research, nongovernmental organizations (NGOs) used a wide array of tools and methods in their M&E systems. Frameworks for logical reasoning, collaborative methods, assessment surveys, field visits, and frameworks for strategy development were a few of these tools and techniques. The findings of the research also showed that the methods and instruments that are used in M&E

activities have a considerable influence on the manner in which they are carried out. However, several NGOs did not employ those tools and procedures, which explains why M&E operations for various projects done by such NGOs were poorly implemented. As a result, there is a need for all stakeholders to agree on the kind of tools and procedures to be used.

Using the founded guidelines and practices, such as tying M&E to strategic and work plans, highlighting efficacy whilst also reducing cost, using a partnership approach to monitoring progress, leveraging both global and local expert knowledge, broadly distributing outcomes, leveraging information from various sources, and improving data use for improvement initiatives, effectively implements M&E to improve program outcomes. Due to the fact that an M&E structure based on best practices promotes public trust and decision-making based on facts (Mathis et al., 2021).

Additionally, the availability of a good structure for monitoring and evaluation enhances completion and success of the project. This is in reference to Khatiala (2020) study on the impact of monitoring and evaluation on HIV/AIDS intervention project delivery capabilities in Nairobi and Nyanza. Further, the study acknowledged the significance of a good M&E structure. It highlighted the role played by continuous M&E review meetings, continuous M&E training for the employees, raising awareness on M&E processes and procedures, availability of the right M&E tools and plans, documentation of lessons learnt, and the M&E solutions that are tailored to the local environment.

2.7 Theoretical Framework

This research study has adopted two theories. These are the Human capacity and the Stakeholders theory, respectively.

2.7.1 Human Capital Theory

Becker and Mincer (1964) were the first to develop it. This theory explains both individuals' and organizations' choices to invest in their staff, primarily in the form of education and training, as well as the pattern of lifetime wages of individuals. The return that will be gotten from the investment in human capital. Individuals or organizations' predicted results from various degrees of education and training investment are discussed based on the terms of the expected profits from the investment.

This approach makes a distinction between the development of human capital for fundamental usage and talents for particular enterprises. Human capital, therefore, acts as a resource. Individual workers have a set of competences or abilities, which they can enhance or accumulate through training and education, according to this theory. Workers' market value should rise as their human capital grows, as they bring more expertise and efficiency to their jobs.

Concerning this study, monitoring and evaluation is a special or unique field that requires expertise, which is not in every organization. The function, however, is vital to validation of environmental project performance, thus the need to use the theory of human capital to justify the significance of expertise in M&E.

2.7.2 Stakeholder Theory

The stakeholder idea was created by R. Edward Freeman in (1984). Since then, this idea has been used in a number of disciplines, including as project management, business ethics, and corporate social responsibility, to address morals and values in managing businesses.

The idea postulates that including stakeholders in the process will be crucial to producing project results that are satisfying. It establishes methods for identifying key stakeholders and

assessing the degree to which they could be seen as influencers who might boost project and organizational performance.

The influence of stakeholders on the project and the use of means-ends reasoning to complete the projects are among the variables that contribute to successful monitoring and assessment. Consequently, the involvement of the interested parties is necessary for better achievement of environmental initiatives. Thus, concerning this study, different key stakeholders have to work together in order to enhance project performance. Hence, the theory is well-suited to the current research and its variable of stakeholder participation.

2.8 Conceptual Framework

An illustration of the connection between the independent and dependent variables in a study is called a conceptual framework. It thus, determines the meaning or the workings of a variable and it empowers a straightforward clarification of the progression of hypothetical structure utilized by the examination (Mugenda and Mugenda, 2019).

Independent Variable

Monitoring and Evaluation





This study sought to determine the influence of monitoring and evaluation on the performance of environmental projects in Kenya: a case of a selected project at the Institute for Law and Environmental Governance. The study had four independent variables that the researcher found critical to the influence of monitoring and evaluation.

Expertise in M&E was measured using three indicators namely level of education, number of years of experience and number of human resources. Stakeholders' participation was assessed using three indicators namely frequency of meetings, level of involvement, and number of stakeholders.

Number of staff trained, expenses balancing, and cost estimates were used to measure the project budget. Number of M&E plans/tools, team composition and frequency of M&E review meetings were used to measure M&E structure.

Three indicators were employed to assess the performance of environmental projects. These are level of stakeholder satisfaction, cost performance index and level of project sustainability. Additionally, within the wider environment of monitoring and evaluation another key factor that may influence the performance of environmental projects included donor policies.

2.9 Knowledge Gaps

The literature review has established the following knowledge gaps as analyzed on the Table 2.1 below:

Variable	Author & Year	Summary of findings	Knowledge gap	Focus of current study
Expertise in M&E	Waithera and Wanyoike (2015)	Study findings did reveal that when staff are trained adequately and have expertise in M&E, it had a substantial and positive impact to performance of the project in the youth- funded agribusiness initiatives, and that youth fund administrators should consider providing all youth organizations that request for money with short, formal, professional M&E training sessions.	This study was on youth and the aspect of performance of agribusiness projects. When it comes to M&E and the performance of environmental initiatives, there exists some knowledge gap.	This study focuses on the influence of expertise in M&E and the performance of environmental projects based on factors such as knowledge base in M&E, level of education, number of years of experience and number of human resources.
Stakeholder participation	Omunga et al, (2019)	According to the findings of the study, participation of stakeholders significantly and considerably influences performance of building projects. The increase of stakeholder participation in M&E activities of the project cycle leads to an advancement in the performance of the building projects. The research focused on building projects.	The study was on how stakeholder's involvement in monitoring and evaluation promotes the success of building projects in non- governmental organizations projects in Nairobi. A knowledge gap exists in stakeholder involvement on the performance of environmental projects in Kenya.	The goal of this study is to look at how stakeholder participation affects the success of environmental projects. It intends to evaluate factors such as frequency of M&E review meetings, the level of involvement, and number of stakeholders.
Project budget	Murei, et al, (2017)	The study results indicated that the budget set aside for evaluation activities caused a major result in high performance	The research was conducted in Nakuru county and focused on how budget	This study aims to evaluate how project budget influences the performance of environmental projects in Kenya at the Institute for Law and Environmental

 Table 2. 1: Research Knowledge Gap Matrix

		of horticultural projects in Nakuru County. There was further recommendation from the study that the budget for monitoring and evaluation should be clearly defined and not be part of the entire budget to offer the monitoring and assessment division autonomy and to increase its contribution to a high project performance.	influences performance of horticultural projects. Nakuru County is one of the 47 counties in Kenya. Therefore, there is a knowledge gap when it comes to how budget influences the success of projects in other parts of the Country.	Governance. The study seeks to explore factors such as the cost estimates, number of staff trained and expenses balancing.
M&E Structure	Afroze and Khan (2017)	The results obtained by the researcher concluded that organizations had to have effective and efficient M&E structures to promote a positive project performance.	The study did not look at other aspects linked to organizational structures for M&E such as frequency of the M&E review meetings and the monitoring and evaluation team. Also, Afroze and Khan (2017) limited their study to international Development projects.	The study focuses on the M&E structure and the performance of environmental projects. The M&E structure will primarily focus on the departmental structure of the organization, the number of M&E plans/ tools, and the frequency of the review meetings.

2.10 Summary of the chapter

This research study's literature review was discussed empirically with the main objectives from a global, regional, and local position. The applicable study theories which link with the study objective were discussed with their relationship stated. The four main research objectives used were illustrated and described showing their association to the study between the researcher's chosen dependent and independent variables. The gaps that have been realized from previous studies were analyzed very clearly, and thereafter summarized.

CHAPTER THREE

RESEARCH METHODOLOGY

3.1 Introduction

This chapter focuses on the research design employed, the target population chosen for the study, methodologies and procedures utilized to sample respondents, data gathering methods, and data analysis methods used in the study. Reliability, validity, data presentation methodology, ethical considerations, and the operations of the research variables are also covered in this chapter.

3.2 Research Design

A research design is an all-encompassing approach to answering the research topic (Saunders et al., 2019). In this research, a descriptive survey approach was used. A survey is an initiative to gather data from people who are a part of a group to assess the state of the population with respect to one or more factors. It is a self-report study that calls for collecting quantitative information from a sample (Mugenda, 2019).

According to Adan (2021) this survey design includes available data retrieval about status of a certain phenomenon with the intention of availing present condition, clear description in relation to variables of research without changing any variable (Wambugu et al., 2015).

Because a research study is associated with figuring out an occurrence, as per Cooper and Schindler (2022), the study design selected is aided in identifying the effect of M&E on the efficiency of environmental projects in Kenya. The goal of descriptive research is to gather information at a certain period and use it to describe the present situation.

According to Mugenda and Mugenda (2019), a descriptive survey is appropriate for gathering data to address the research questions and so enables a researcher to identify the
characteristics of the variables of interest. The design is also thought to be acceptable for this research since it offers enough descriptive data on the target audience while being fast and inexpensive. Descriptive survey methodology was thus the most suitable and reasonable strategy for the present investigation.

3.3 Target Population

In any survey, the target population denotes the whole set unit of individuals with observable characteristics which inferences can be made (Mugenda & Mugenda, 2019). The population to be targeted constituted the complete or totality of the items under study (Kothari, 2015).

At the Institute for Law and Environmental Governance, the programmes division undertakes various environmental projects. This study focused on 1 selected project. The projects are supported by various divisions such as the finance and administration division, the M&E division, the procurement division and the publicity and communications division.

There are also key stakeholders in each project that is implemented by the Institute for Law and Environmental Governance. They comprise of project sponsors, community members where the project is being implemented, county governments and project beneficiaries. Government agencies such as the Ministry of Environment & Forestry and National Environment Management Authority (NEMA) also help provide legislative guidelines and maintain standards to meet Kenyan requirements.

This study had a target population of 40 respondents. These comprised of program managers, project assistants, monitoring and evaluation officers, project field officers, finance and administration officers, consultants, project stakeholders involved in the environmental projects in the selected environmental project at the Institute for Law and Environmental Governance.

Category	Frequency
Program Manager	1
Project Officer	1
Project Assistants	5
M&E Officers	2
Field Officers	8
Finance & Administration Officers	3
Consultants	5
Key Stakeholders (in the project)	15
TOTAL	40

 Table 3. 1: Target Population

(Source: Institute for Law and Environmental Governance records January 2022 - The Access Initiative (TAI) Project)

3.4 Sample Size

The process of picking the appropriate individuals, items, or events for a research study is known as sampling. (Wambugu et al., 2015). A sample, according to Mugenda and Mugenda (2019), is a subgroup that has been carefully chosen to be representative of the entire population and to have relevant qualities. If the study's population is small, Kothari (2015) recommends taking the entire population.

As a result, the census method was employed in this study, which is a statistical enumeration approach in which the entire population is studied. Therefore, in this study, all the 40 respondents involved in the implementation of environmental projects at the Institute for Law and Environmental Governance were used. Census approach was adopted because the target population is small and manageable within the scope of this study. The approach is the most accurate and provides a genuine measure of the population, as the estimates are not subject to sampling error (Babbie, 2020).

3.5 Research Instruments

In this particular research project, a series of questionnaires served as the principal tool for data collecting. In addition, a structured interview schedule similar to the questionnaire was prepared for use by the trained research assistants. 40 questionnaires were administered. A questionnaire is an effective tool for gathering sample data. A questionnaire, according to Joyce and Kirakowski (2015), is a mechanism for eliciting, recording, and collecting data. Some of the advantages of using a questionnaire include its ease of use and the ability to collect significant volumes of data in a short period of time.

The first part of the questionnaire was dedicated to collecting the demographic information or data pertaining to the respondents, while the second half followed the research objectivesDue to their simple language and clear guidance, the surveys were self-administered. The survey was designed and distributed to the respondents by the researcher. Because of differences in participant accessibility, the researcher decided to use the "drop off and pick later" method when administering questionnaire forms.

The drop-off and pick-up strategy yield a high response rate while also reducing researcher presence bias (Cooper and Schindler 2022). In a semi-structured interview, a timetable is a predetermined order of questions and topics to be addressed. This gave the research assistants guidance on what to inquire about, what order to inquire about it in, how to inquire, and how to inquire further.

3.5.1 Piloting the Research Instruments

This entails assessing the research instruments adequacy, as the quality of the research instrument impacts the study's outcome. In any research, pilot testing refers to the first or earliest study conducted to measure the study instruments, persistence, efficiency, adverse, and increase the study design before undertaking the final research project.

Piloting ensures that the collected data is useful and adequately assessed in respect to the stated research objectives by promoting clarity of the questionnaire and interview schedule items. Piloting also aids in determining whether the research instruments are reliable, that respondents interpret the questions correctly, that the phrasing is precise, and that potential study bias is avoided.

The study employed 10% of the sample size, according to Mugenda and Mugenda (2019) theory of sampling (10% of 40). Therefore, this were 4 respondents who work on the environmental projects, at the National Environment Management Authority (NEMA). This was among the respondents, to help test the rigor of the instrument. The National Environment Management Authority (NEMA) has similar social cultural features similar to the organization of study. Following the pilot, improvements were made to solve the issues that came up.

3.5.2 Validity of the Research Instruments

Mugenda & Mugenda (2019) defined validity as the extent to which data generated from a research instrument correctly reflects the phenomena under study. So the researcher could be certain that the items measure the required constructs, the validity of research instruments was tested. The validity of this research was to be tested using both theoretical and empirical evaluations.

Utilizing content validity, the theoretical assessment was tested. The content validity of a set of scale items is determined by how well they fit the key content domain of the construct being evaluated. There is no standard procedure for determining content validity; it is a matter of expert and researcher opinion. The study's research goals and research paradigm, which aimed to understand the impact of monitoring and assessment on environmental project performance in Kenya, led to the selection of this test of validity technique.

According to the stated aim and goals of the research, two experts' opinion was considered to ensure the correct development of the questionnaires, had the required substance, and properly reflected the variables under investigation.

3.5.3 Reliability of the Research Instruments

Trustworthiness, as defined by Mugenda & Mugenda (2019), is the ability of a research instrument to provide stable findings or data over time. Doing so guarantees that the instrument has collected and captured all relevant data. Reliability examines the repeatability of results when the instrument is used again (Creswell, 2021).

To evaluate the questionnaires' reliability, a pilot study was conducted. The National Environment Management Authority (NEMA), whose environmental initiatives are comparable to those of the Institute for Law and Environmental Governance, conducted the pilot research. The people in question took a test from the researcher. Cronbach's Alpha was then used for reliability analysis, which examined internal consistency by determining if certain items on a scale measure the same concept. The baseline for the research was the 0.7 Alpha value criterion set by Gliem & Gliem in 2021.

Variable	Cronbach Alpha Coefficient	No. of Items	Comments
	score		
Expertise in M&E	0.882	7	Reliable
Stakeholders' Participation	0.833	7	Reliable
Project Budget	0.806	5	Reliable
M&E Structure	0.801	5	Reliable

Table 3. 2: Reliability Analysis

The table demonstrates that the strongest dependability factor was expertise in M&E (= 0.882), followed by stakeholder participation (= 0.833), project budget (= 0.806), and M&E structure (= 0.801). This demonstrates that all of the variables were reliable because their dependability values exceeded the necessary cutoff of 0.7.

3.6 Data Collection Procedures

Using a letter of reference from the University of Nairobi and a research permission from the National Commission for Science, Technology and Innovation (NACOSTI), the researcher applied for and received approval for doing research at the Institute for Law and Environmental Governance.

The researcher then established rapport and made appointments with the respondents at the Institute for Law and Environmental Governance, to set a period within which the questionnaires were administered. Research assistants were recruited and trained in administering questionnaires to gather data.

After gaining informed consent, the researcher collected data from the respondents with the help of research assistants on the agreed-upon dates. The respondents were also be given adequate time.

3.7 Data Analysis Techniques

This entailed analyzing the information gathered and drawing conclusions. After collecting the questionnaires, the researcher verified the questionnaires and checked to see if they were filled up properly.

Analysis of data started with editing of the data in order to identify various errors such as spelling errors, as well as any other incorrectly answered or un-responded to items, that were made by the respondents.

The data was then analyzed quantitively using Statistical Package for Social Sciences (SPSS) version 21.0. There was data coding to make data entering into the computer easier so that statistical analysis could be done based on the research questions. This study used descriptive data analysis techniques.

The distribution of scores was evaluated using descriptive statistics, including distributions of frequency, percentages, and measures of central tendency (the mean, mode, and median). Measures of dispersion on the other hand gave information on how data points of a variable are dispersed from the real average. Tables, charts, and graphs were used to display the statistical data. The standard deviation depicts the degree of variation in the respondents' responses.

A standard deviation of more than 1.0, in the case of the utilized Likert scale with a variance of one from one choice to the next, indicates a high range of responses from the mean and, as a result of disagreement between the respondents. Standard deviation of lower than 0.5, on the other hand, indicates a narrow spread of replies from the mean response and, as a result, significant unanimity among the respondents. A standard deviation of 0.5 to 1.0 indicates a

modest spread of replies from the mean and, as a result, a moderate extent of agreement by the participants, a standard deviation that is low had a positive impact and therefore desired.

3.8 Ethical Consideration

Ethics are the rules of conduct that define what is acceptable and what is not acceptable behavior in a scientific investigation. (Wambugu et. al., 2015).

In order to conduct the study, the researcher received approval from the University of Nairobi and a research license from NACOSTI. When the researcher first made contact with study participants, she briefed them on the study's objetve and justification for conducting the research.

Other significant ethical issues that were considered in the research process were consent and confidentiality. Before the data gathering exercise, the respondents' consent was obtained. The respondents were assured that the study was for the reasons of academic only by the researcher. The respondents were advised that the study is voluntary and that they can opt out of the research at any time, and that their confidentiality would be guaranteed and upheld by not disclosing their names or personal information on the questionnaire or the research document.

Additionally, the study adhered to the plagiarism policy which is defined as "the action or practice of copying someone else's work or idea and passing it off as one's own" by the University of Nairobi plagiarism policy (University of Nairobi, 2013). Utmost care was taken to acknowledge literature used from other scholars and various data sources through proper referencing.

3.9 Operational definition of variables

A description that details how a variable is accurately measured is known as an operational definition (Tuckman, 2022). Table 3.3 lists the many types of variables that were studied along with how they were assessed.

Successful performance of environmental projects in Kenya is conceptualized to be influenced by monitoring and evaluation with regards to the expertise in M&E, stakeholder participation, project budget, and M&E structure.

Research objectives	Variables	Indicators	Measurement scale	Type of data analysis
To determine the extent to which expertise in M&E influence the performance of environmental projects in Kenya at the Institute for Law and Environmental Governance.	Expertise in M&E	 Level of education Number of years of experience Level of capacity Number of human resources 	Nominal and ordinal scales	Descriptive Statistics
To examine the extent to which stakeholder participation influence the performance of environmental projects in Kenya at the Institute for Law and Environmental Governance.	Stakeholder participation	 Frequency of meetings Number of stakeholders Level of influence or involvement 	Nominal and ordinal scales	Descriptive Statistics
To establish the extent to which project budget influence the performance of environmental projects in Kenya at the Institute for Law and Environmental Governance.	Project budget	 Cost estimate Expenses balancing Earmarking resources Number of staff trained 	Nominal and ordinal scales	Descriptive Statistics
To determine the influence of M&E structure on the performance of environmental projects in Kenya at the Institute for Law and Environmental Governance.	M&E Structure	 Number of M&E plans/tools Team composition Frequency of M&E review meetings 	Nominal and ordinal scales	Descriptive Statistics
	Performance of environmental projects.	 Level of stakeholder satisfaction Cost performance index Level of project sustainability 	Nominal and ordinal scales	Descriptive Statistics

 Table 3. 3: Operational definition of variables

CHAPTER FOUR

DATA ANALYSIS, PRESENTATION, AND INTERPRETATION

4.1 Introduction

This chapter presents the data analysis, findings of the study and interpretation of the findings with the goal of accomplishing the study's objectives.

4.1.1 Questionnaire Return Rate

The percentage of respondents who undertook the survey out of all those who were asked to fill out a survey is known as the rate of questionnaire responses. Table 4.1 shows that a sample size of 40 returned 36 questionnaires with all required information, or a 90 percent response rate.

Category	Frequency	Percentage (%)
Responded	36	90
Did not respond	4	10
Total	40	100

Table 4. 1: Questionnaire Return Rate

4.2 Background Information

The background data of the respondent was first examined in the research. The details requested by this section entail, participants gender group, age bracket, highest academic qualification, and period of service.

4.2.1 Distribution of Respondents by Gender

It was requested that participants in this study identify themselves according to their gender. This was investigated in order to determine whether or not the population under investigation was gender balanced. The findings, broken down by gender, are shown in Table 4.2.

	Frequency	Percentage
Male	25	69.4
Female	11	30.6
Total	36	100.0

Table 4. 2: Distribution of Respondents by Gender

Results presented in table 4.2 above show that, Most study participants—725 (69.4%) were male, while 11 or 30.6% were female. These findings demonstrate equal participation from both gender groups, ruling out the possibility of results that are biased against one or the other gender.

4.2.2 Distribution of Respondents by Age

The research needed the participants in the study to specify their age in order to make sure that the data collected by this research takes into account the perspectives of different ages. In the specified age ranges, participants were required to self-identify. Table 4.3 displays the results of the survey's age breakdown.

	Frequency	Percentage
Below 25 years	2	5.6
26-35 years	10	27.8
36-45 years	13	36.1
46-55 years	6	16.7
Above 55 years	5	13.9
Total	36	100.0

Table 4. 3: Distribution of Respondents by Age

The study found that the majority of respondents—13, or 36.1%—were between the ages of 36 and 45, followed by 10 respondents—27.8%— who were aged between 26 and 35, six participants (16.7%), and five participants (46.5%) who were aged between 46 and 55 — 13.9%—who were over the age of 55, and two respondents—5.6%—who were under the age of 25. The results indicate that a range of age groups participated in the survey, suggesting that the research effectively caught the views of these different age groups.

4.2.3 Distribution of Respondents by Highest Academic Qualification

According to empirical research, literacy levels are related to how people perceive, interpret, and approach problems. The research required the participants to provide information on their academic qualification in order to determine the participant's capability to respond to the survey questionnaire.

	Frequency	Percentage
Diploma	6	16.7
Degree	28	77.7
Postgraduate	2	5.6
Total	36	100.0

Table 4. 4: Distribution of Respondents by Highest Academic Qualification

According to the study's results, the majority of respondents 28 (77.7 percent) identified a degree as being their highest academic qualification, followed by diplomas 6 (16.7 percent) and postgraduates 2 (5.6 percent). This suggests most of the targeted respondents were educated, making it easy for them to reply to the study's research questions.

4.2.4 Distribution of Respondents by Period of Service

Study participants' were asked to indicate the period which they have worked at Institute for Law and Environmental Governance. Results on period of service are presented in Table 4.5.

	Frequency	Percentage
Below 1 year	2	5.6
1-2 years	4	11.1
3-4 years	8	22.2
5 years and above	22	61.1
Total	36	100.0

Table 4. 5: Distribution of Respondents by Period of Service

According to the results, the majority of respondents 22 (61.1%) said they had worked for the company for at least five years. Eight (22.2%) said they had worked there for three to four years. Four (11.1%) said they had worked there for one to two years. Two (5.6%) said they had worked there for less than a year. According to the study's findings, it is clear that the majority of the respondents had worked at the Institute for Law and Environmental Governance for a sizable amount of time, indicating that they had a wealth of experience and were thus well-qualified to provide in-depth information about the study's topic.

4.3 Expertise in M&E and Performance of Environmental Projects

Objective 1: To determine the extent to which expertise in M&E influence the performance of environmental projects in Kenya at the Institute for Law and Environmental Governance.

According to the first variable, this section presents statistical results evaluating how much M&E expertise affects environmental project performance at the Institute for Law and Environmental Governance, Kenya. Participants were required to describe their background in the discipline of M&E.

Table 4. 6: Respondent's Professional Skills on Monitoring and Evaluation

	Frequency	Percentage
Diploma M&E	7	19.4
Degree in M&E	27	75.0
Postgraduate in M&E	2	5.6
Total	36	100.0

Results show that majority 27 (75.0%) of the respondents had degree in M&E, 7 (19.4%) of the respondent had diploma in M&E while 2 (5.6%) of the respondent had postgraduate certification in M&E.

4.3.1 Ability to Collect Primary M&E Data from Environmental Projects

Study participants' were asked to indicate whether they were in a position to collect primary M&E data from environmental projects within the required time.

Tal	ble 4.	. 7:	Ability	to	Colle	ect P	rimary	M	&E	Dat	a
-----	--------	------	---------	----	-------	-------	--------	---	---------------	-----	---

	Frequency	Percentage
Yes	36	100
Total	36	100

Result show that all 36 (100%) the respondents were in a position to collect primary M&E data from environmental projects within the required time.

Respondents were asked to judge the following statements, all of which assess the correlation between M&E skill and the success of environmental initiatives. The statements were measured on a scale of 1-5 where 1 =Strongly Disagree, 2 =Disagree, 3 =Neutral, 4 =Agree, 5 =Strongly Agree. The results were presented in Table 4.8.

Statement	Strongly Disagree	Disagree (2)	Neutral (3)	Agree (4)	Strongly Agree (5)	Ν	Mean	Std. Deviation
T 1 C	(1)	0	F(12.00())	10(500())	12/26 10/	26	4.00	0.60
Level of	0	0	5(13.8%)	18(50%)	13(36.1%)	36	4.08	0.60
ennances quality								
of M&E data								
derived from								
environmental								
projects	0	0	2(0,20)	10(52 70()	14/20.00/)	26	4 17	0.61
Number of years	0	0	3(8.3%)	19(52.7%)	14(38.8%)	30	4.17	0.01
of experience								
influence the								
performance of								
environmental								
The number of	0	0	2(5,50())	21(59,20/)	12(26, 10/)	26	1.06	0.75
human masaumaas	0	0	2(3.3%)	21(38.5%)	15(50.1%)	30	4.00	0.75
numan resources								
M&E process								
Educational loval	0	0	$A(11 \ 104)$	20(55,5%)	12(33 304)	36	3.04	0.86
improves	0	0	4(11.170)	20(33.370)	12(33.370)	50	5.94	0.80
utilization of								
M&E information								
Experience in	0	0	4(11.1%)	22(61.1%)	10(27.7%)	36	4 28	0.61
M&E promotes	0	0	4(11.170)	22(01.170)	10(27.770)	50	4.20	0.01
cost-effectiveness								
in environmental								
projects								
Average							4.11	0.69

Table 4. 8: Expertise in M&E and performance of environmental projects

Statistical evidence show that the respondent were in agreement that experience in M&E promotes cost-effectiveness in environmental projects (M=4.28 SD=0.61), number of years of experience influence the performance of environmental projects (M=4.17 SD=0.61) and that education level improves M&E data quality derived from environmental projects (M=4.08 SD=0.60).

Additionally, this results of this analysis demonstrated that the number of human resources improves the process of M&E (M=4.06 SD=), and that education level reinforces the use of M&E data (M=3.94 SD=0.86).

4.4 Stakeholder Participation and Performance of Environmental Projects

Objective 2: To establish the influence of stakeholder participation on the performance of environmental projects in Kenya at the Institute for Law and Environmental Governance.

The study sought to determine whether stakeholders play an important role in M&E in environmental projects.

	Frequency	Percentage
Yes	27	75.0
No	9	25.0
Total	36	100.0

 Table 4. 9: Role of stakeholders M&E in environmental projects

From the study results, majority 27 (75.0%) of the respondents were of the opinion that stakeholders play an important role in M&E in environmental projects while 9 (25.0%) were of the contrary opinion.

The study participants were asked to rate the following statements that evaluate the relationship between stakeholder participation in M&E and performance of environmental 1-5 projects. The statements were measured on а scale of where 1 = Strongly Disagree, 2 = Disagree, 3 = Neutral, 4 = Agree, 5 = Strongly Agree. The results were presented in Table 4.10.

Statement	Strongly Disagree	Disagree (2)	Neutral (3)	Agree (4)	Strongly Agree (5)	Ν	Mean	Std. Deviation
	(1)							
The number of	1(2.7%)	2(5.5%)	7(19.4%)	16(44.4%)	10(27.7%)	36	1.94	0.79
stakeholders in								
M&E process is								
adequate								
Involvement of	0	0	9(25%)	18(50%)	9(25%)	36	4.19	0.67
stakeholders in								
M&E decision								
making enhances								
projects								
performance								
Stakeholder	1(2.7%)	0	5(13.8%)	22(61.1%)	8(22.2%)	36	3.92	0.65
participation in the								
selection of M&E								
indicators enhances								
the quality of M&E								
data.	_							
Participating	0	2(5.5%)	6(16.6%)	19(52.7%)	9(25%)	36	4.22	0.72
stakeholders in								
sharing of								
information,								
reporting, and data								
gathering ensures								
documentary								
evidence of findings								
and lessons learned.	0	0		21 (50 20)	0.00		4.0.0	
Frequent meetings	0	0	6(16.6%)	21(58.3%)	9(25%)	36	4.03	0.77
with stakeholders in								
the M&E process is								
essential	0	1 (0 70()			7/10 40/2	26	1.07	0.70
Stakeholders are	0	1(2.7%)	6(16.6%)	23(63.8%)	7(19.4%)	36	1.97	0.70
involved in all								
ieveis of the Mi&E								
process							2.20	0.51
Average							5.38	0.71

 Table 4. 10: Stakeholder participation and performance of environmental projects

According to the results, the majority of those surveyed concurred that stakeholder participation in data gathering, reporting, and sharing guarantees documentary evidence and lessons learned (M=4.22 SD=0.72) and that involvement of stakeholders in M&E decision making enhances projects performance (M=4.19 SD=0.67).

Additionally, the research concluded that stakeholder participation in the selection of M&E metrics enhances the quality of M&E data (M=3.92 SD=0.65) and that regular meetings with various stakeholder groups in the M&E process are crucial (M=4.03 SD=0.77).

However, the findings of this study showed that stakeholder groups are involved at all stages of the M&E procedure and that the number of stakeholders involved is insufficient (M=1.94 SD=0.79).

4.5 Project budget and performance of environmental projects

Objective 3: To establish the extent to which project budget influence the performance of environmental projects in Kenya at the Institute for Law and Environmental Governance.

Respondents were asked to rate the following statements that evaluate the relationship between project budget and performance of environmental projects. The statements were measured on a scale of 1-5 where 1 = Strongly Disagree, 2 = Disagree, 3 = Neutral, 4 = Agree, 5 = Strongly Agree. The results were presented in Table 4.11.

Statement	Strongly Disagree	Disagree (2)	Neutral (3)	Agree (4)	Strongly Agree (5)	Ν	Mean	Std. Deviation
	(1)	2/0.20/	- (1	4.8/44 60/)	10/25 50/		1.00	0.51
Financing for	2(5.5%)	3(8.3%)	6(16.6%)	15(41.6%)	10(27.7%)	36	1.89	0.71
environmental								
projects is								
adequate								
Budget	2(5.5%)	4(11.1%)	5(13.8%)	18(50%)	7(19.4%)	36	4.25	0.55
determines								
duration and								
frequency of								
M&E								
The number of	2(5.5%)	2(5.5%)	4(11.1%)	20(55.5%)	8(22.2%)	36	4.22	0.64
staff and experts								
trained enhance								
quality of M&E								
data%								
Cost estimates for	2(5.5%)	1(2.7%)	5(13.8%)	19(52.7%)	9(25%)	36	4.22	0.59
carrying out	()	(
project activities								
are adequate								
There are enough	1(2.7%)	2(5.5%)	3(83%)	21(58.3%)	9(25%)	36	1 89	0.67
earmarking	1(2.770)	2(3.370)	5(0.570)	21(30.370))(2570)	50	1.07	0.07
resources								
Average							3.29	0.63

Table 4. 11: Project budget and performance of environmental projects

Statistical evidence show that majority of the respondents agreed that budget determines duration and frequency of M&E (M=4.25 SD=0.55) the number of staff and experts trained enhance quality of M&E data (M=4.22 SD=0.64) and that cost estimates for carrying out project activities are adequate (M=4.22 SD=0.59).

However, results of this study revealed that environmental projects lack enough earmarking resources (M=1.89 SD=0.67) and that financing for environmental projects is also inadequate (M=1.89 SD=0.71).

4.6 M&E Structure and performance of environmental projects

Objective 4: To determine the influence of an M&E structure on the performance of environmental projects in Kenya at the Institute for Law and Environmental Governance.

Respondents were asked to rate the following statements that evaluate the relationship between the M&E Structure and performance of environmental projects. The statements were measured on a scale of 1-5 where 1 =Strongly Disagree, 2 =Disagree, 3 =Neutral, 4 =Agree, 5 =Strongly Agree. The results were presented in Table 4.12.

Statement	Strongly Disagree (1)	Disagree (2)	Neutral (3)	Agree (4)	Strongly Agree (5)	N	Mean	Std. Deviation
The departmental structure is effective and	1(2.7%)	3(8.3%)	5(13.8%)	22(61.1%)	5(13.8%)	36	2.17	0.85
efficient The plans and tools ensure utilization of M&E	1(2.7%)	0	5(13.8%)	23(63.8%)	7(19.4%)	36	4.22	0.64
information The number of the team contributes towards the	0	0	3(8.3%)	29(80.5%)	4(11.1%)	36	4.14	0.68
environmental projects The regularly review meetings	2(5.5%)	1(2.7%)	2(5.5%)	25(69.4%)	6(16.6%)	36	4.11	0.62

 Table 4. 12: M&E Structure and performance of environmental projects

ensure utilization								
of M&E								
information which								
promotes learning								
The number of	3(8.3%)	3(8.3%)	3(8.3%)	20(55.5%)	7(19.4%)	36	2.31	1.04
plans/tools are								
adequate and								
enhance								
compliance with								
project plans								
Average							3.39	0.77

Results show that majority of the respondents agreed that the plans M&E information usage (M=4.22 SD=0.64), the number of the team contributes towards the success of environmental projects (M=4.14 SD=0.68) and that the regularly review meetings ensure utilization of M&E information which promotes learning (M=4.11 SD=0.62).

However, the study findings showed that departmental structure is not effective and efficient as it should be (M=2.17 SD=0.85) and that the number of plans/tools are adequate and enhance compliance with project plans (M=2.31 SD=0.64).

CHAPTER FIVE

SUMMARY OF FINDINGS, DISCUSSIONS, CONCLUSIONS AND RECOMMENDATIONS

5.1 Introduction

The primary results are summarized in this chapter, along with a discussion of how they relate to the study's goals. On the basis of the results, the chapter also includes a conclusion, suggestions, and topics for additional investigation.

5.2 Summary of the Findings

The study's primary goal was to find out the respondents' gender. The bulk of the respondents, 25, were men (69.4%), while 11 (30.6%) were women, according to the data. This shows that both gender groups were fairly represented in the project. Based on the participants' age distribution the majority of participants—13 (36.1%)—were aged 36 and 45, preceded by 10 (27.8%), of those between the ages of 26 and 35, 6 (16%) of those between the ages of 46 and 55, 5 (13.9%) of those over 55, and 2 (5.6%) of those under 25. The results indicate that a range of age groups participated in the survey, suggesting that the research effectively caught the views of these different age groups.

When asked what their highest educational qualification was, the majority of respondents—28 (77.7%)—said a degree, followed by a diploma — six (16.7%), and a postgraduate two (5.6%) of the respondents. This suggests that the majority of survey respondents were well-educated and therefore able to answer the questionnaire presented.

Regarding the respondents' length of service, the majority of 22 (61.1%) said they had worked for a company for at least five years, followed by eight (22.2%) who said they had worked there for three to four years, four (11.1%) who said they had worked there for one to two years, and two (5.6%) who had worked there for less than a year. According to the study's findings, it is clear that the majority of the respondents had worked at the Institute for Law and Environmental Governance for a sizable amount of time, indicating that they had a wealth of experience and were thus well-qualified to provide in-depth information about the study's topic.

5.2.1 Expertise in M&E and Performance of Environmental Projects

In line with the first variable, results show that all 36 (100%) of the respondents were in a position to collect primary M&E data from environmental projects within the required time. Experience in M&E promotes cost-effectiveness in environmental projects (M=4.28 SD=0.61), number of years of experience influence the performance of environmental projects (M=4.17 SD=0.61) and that education level improves quality of M&E data derived from environmental projects (M=4.08 SD=0.60).

Also, results of this study revealed that the number of human resources enhances the M&E process (M=4.06 SD=) and that the usage of M&E information is improved by education level (M=3.94 SD=0.86).

5.2.2 Stakeholder Participation and Performance of Environmental Projects

According to the study's findings concerning the second variable, stakeholder participation in data gathering, reporting, and information sharing ensures appropriate paperwork of lessons learned (M=4.22 SD=0.72) and that involvement of stakeholders in M&E decision making enhances projects performance (M=4.19 SD=0.67).

Additionally, the study found that including stakeholders in the M&E process requires regular meetings (M=4.03 SD=0.77) and that doing so enhances the quality of M&E data (M=3.92 SD=0.65). However, results of this study revealed that the number of stakeholders in M&E

processes is not adequate (M=1.94 SD=0.79) and participation of stakeholders is evident in all levels of the M&E process (M=1.97 SD=0.70).

5.2.3 Project Budget and Performance of Environmental Projects

In line with the third variable, statistical evidence shows that project budget affects the M&E duration (M=4.25 SD=0.55), the number of staff and experts trained enhance quality of M&E data (M=4.22 SD=0.64), and that cost estimates for carrying out project activities are adequate (M=4.22 SD=0.59).

Further, results of this study revealed that environmental projects lack enough earmarking resources (M=1.89 SD=0.67) and that financing for environmental projects is inadequate (M=1.89 SD=0.71).

5.2.4 M&E Structure and performance of environmental projects

Assessment on the relationship between the M&E Structure and performance of environmental projects showed that plans ensuring M&E information usage (M=4.22 SD=0.64), the number of the team contributes towards the success of environmental projects (M=4.14 SD=0.68) and that regularly review meetings ensure utilization of M&E information which promotes learning (M=4.11 SD=0.62).

Additionally, findings indicate that the structure of the departments is not effective and efficient as it should be (M=2.17 SD=0.85) and that the number of plans/tools are adequate and enhance compliance with project plans (M=2.31 SD=0.64).

5.3 Discussion of the findings

5.3.1 Expertise in M&E and Performance of Environmental Projects

The study's results showed that having more human resources improves the M&E process, that having more education makes it easier to use M&E data, and that having staff members with M&E expertise is essential for carrying out M&E operations successfully. Given that M&E

success depends on M&E officers' competence, it is critical to improve the professional certification of M&E specialists in order to expand the number of local M&E experts as well as their caliber and quantity. The results support Lopez et al study .'s conclusion (2021), which asserts that high ranking and program managers need technical M&E training to use M&E information and, to foster a culture of results inside of organizations.

Descriptive results show that, all the employees in Kenya at the Institute for Law and Environmental Governance were in a position to collect primary M&E data from environmental projects within the required time, experience in M&E promotes cost-effectiveness in environmental projects and the number of years of experience influence the performance of environmental projects and that the level of education enhances quality of M&E data derived from environmental projects. The findings support the recommendation by Mushori (2015) that to improve the efficiency of M&E in environmental programs, capacity building must be conducted out at all levels.

5.3.2 Stakeholder Participation and Performance of Environmental Projects

In line with the second objective, results show that frequent meetings with stakeholders in the M&E process is essential. Stakeholders play a significant role in the M&E of environmental projects in Kenya, and involving them in the selection of M&E indicators improves the quality of M&E data. Descriptive findings demonstrate that stakeholder involvement in monitoring and evaluation is necessary. Stakeholder participation fosters program ownership as they create their own resources and tools which leads to successful implementation. This is necessary for positive and lasting outcomes to be realized.

Despite the fact that stakeholders are involved at all stages of the M&E procedure, the number of participants is insufficient. Stakeholder's contribution promotes local ownership and sustainability of the project, especially if they participate actively throughout the project's life cycle. To guarantee maximum engagement of stakeholders in the project, they must be involved during the planning and execution phases, with special attention paid to their needs. The results support Musomba et al (2020) finding that stakeholder engagement is a critical element for the implementation and operation of M&E activities.

The study found that stakeholder participation in data gathering, reporting, and information dissemination guarantees documentary evidence and lessons learned, and that doing so improves project performance. These findings support research conclusion by Murungi (2018) that stakeholder's contribution promotes local ownership and sustainability of the project, especially if they participate actively throughout the project's life cycle.

5.3.3 Project Budget and Performance of Environmental Projects

The descriptive findings indicate that M&E operations have to be budgeted for in order to guarantee that sufficient resources will be made available to carry them out as planned. Budgets for projects need to include for tasks like monitoring and evaluating progress. The M&E budget should include expected expenditures and revenue for a certain time period, and monitoring and evaluation costs should account for around 3 to 10 percent of the project's total cost. On the other hand, this goes against what Frankel and his coworkers (2019) claimed, stating that there is no established method for figuring out how much of a budget for a project should be set aside for M&E.

Results of this study revealed that environmental projects lack enough earmarking resources and that financing for environmental projects is also inadequate. The findings support similar conclusion by Barasa (2020), that it is critical to include the M&E budget in the strategic plan for environmental projects. Murei, Kidombo and Gakuu, (2021) also assert that project budget for M&E operations should be all-inclusive, accounting for all costs and expenses that are anticipated to be incurred. Statistical evidence show that the project budget determines duration and frequency of M&E activities, the number of staff and experts trained enhance quality of M&E data and that cost estimates for carrying out project activities are adequate. The findings concur with the study finding by Gyorkos, (2021) the budget for M&E should be properly defined and separated from the overall project budget.

5.3.4 M&E Structure and performance of environmental projects

Assessment on the relationship between the M&E structure and performance of environmental projects showed that plans and tools ensure utilization of M&E information, the number of the team contributes towards the success of environmental projects and that the regularly review meetings ensure utilization of M&E information which promotes learning. The results support Kerzner's (2019) study finding that the project will be completed and succeed to a greater extent if a structure for M&E is available.

Results from descriptive analyses reveal that an M&E structure built on best practices encourages the use of facts in public decision-making. The tools and techniques used in M&E operations have a significant impact on their execution. A good M&E framework may help with ideas by assessing whether they are optimal and most appropriate to accomplish through project plans and objectives. The results back up Kerzner's (2019) claim that there should be a framework that provides detailed instructions regarding how the M&E framework in institutions should look in order for M&E activities to be implemented with effectiveness.

The different department's structure is not as efficient and effective as it should be, but the study's findings also showed that there are enough plans and tools to improve project plan compliance. The findings support similar conclusion by World Bank, (2022) that the M&E framework should have comprehensive information on the planned budget, technical skills that

will be required of the project personnel, as well as enlighten project funders on the project execution.

5.4 Conclusion

The study concludes that expertise in M&E influence the performance of environmental projects in Kenya, employees at the Institute for Law and Environmental Governance had the necessary expertise and experience to collect primary M&E data from environmental projects within the required time. Although there is adequate human expertise to oversee implementation of environmental projects in Kenya at the Institute for Law and Environmental Governance, continuous development is required, capacity building needs to be carried out at all levels to enhance the effectiveness of monitoring and evaluation in environmental initiatives.

The study concluded that stakeholder participation in monitoring and evaluation is essential for positive project outcomes to be realized. Although stakeholder's contribution promotes local ownership and sustainability of the project, participation levels are not adequate especially in M&E of environmental projects in Kenya at the Institute for Law and Environmental Governance.

The study came to the conclusion that M&E ought to be budgeted for so that the resources needed to carry them out are made available. Environmental projects in Kenya at the Institute for Law and Environmental Governance lack enough financing resources, the project budget for M&E should be properly defined and all-inclusive, accounting for all costs and expenses that are anticipated to be incurred and separated from the overall project budget.

The study's findings indicate that M&E structure has an impact on how well environmental projects at the Institute for Law and Environmental Governance perform in Kenya. Best

practices-based M&E structures encourage decision-making and public trust that is supported by facts. An effective framework that provides detailed instructions on how M&E is to be conducted is necessary for the M&E activities to be implemented in order to successfully complete and succeed the project.

5.5 Recommendations

The management of Kenya at the Institute for Law and Environmental Governance should ensure that all the individuals involved in M&E exercise undergoes continuous capacity development. This will be important in enhancing the effectiveness of monitoring and evaluation in environmental initiatives.

Given that stakeholder's participation was found to play a critical part in the M&E exercise which ultimately influenced project success, it's important for the management to ensure that all environmental projects have an efficient stakeholder engagement framework. To avoid conflict of interest, this framework should define involvement terms such as role clarity, stakeholder segmentation, and communication protocols.

M&E activities for environmental projects should be budgeted in advance so that the resources needed to carry them out are made available. The project budget, especially for monitoring and evaluation activities should be properly defined and separated from the overall project budget. In fact, for M&E the budget should constitute about 3% to 10% of the overall project expenditure.

Results showed that M&E structure within the organization is not as effective and efficient as it should be. Therefore, the study recommends that Institute for Law and Environmental Governance should have an M&E structure that is established based on best practices that promote evidence-based public trust and decision-making.

5.6 Suggestions for further research

Investigating monitoring and assessment of environmental project performance in Kenya was the main goal of this research. The breadth and factors that affect the sustainability of community-based programs in Kenya may be explored in similar research.

REFERENCES

- Acevedo, G. L., Rivera, K., Lima., L, & Hwang., H. (Eds.). (2010). Challenges in monitoring and evaluation: An opportunity to institutionalize M&E systems. Fifth conference of the Latin America and the Caribbean Monitoring and Evaluation Network. Washington DC, World Bank.
- Afroze, G.& Khan, R. (2017). Investigating Impact of Effective Communication Practices and Project Complexity on Performance of International Development Projects. International Academic Journal of Information Sciences and Project Management, 3(3), 1-22
- Armstrong, M., & Baron, A. (2013). Performance Management: The New Realities.
- Babbie, E. (2020). The practice of social research. 12th Edition, Wadsworth, Belmont.
- Behn, R.D. (2018). "Why Measure Performance? Different Purposes Require Different Measures." Public Administration Review 63 (5): 586-606. Chartered Institute of Personnel and Development.
- Chin, C. M. M. (2012). Development of a project management methodology for use in a university-industry collaborative research environment (Doctoral dissertation).
 University of Nottingham, Semenyih Selangor Darul Ehsan, Malaysia.
- Chitere, Preston & Ireri, Onesmus. (2014). *District focus for rural development in Kenya: its limitations as a decentralization and participatory planning strategy and prospects for the future.* Retrieved from
- Cleland, D.I. & Gareis, R. (2006). *Global Project Management Handbook Chapter 1 The Evolution of Project Management,* McGraw-Hill Professional, New York, United States of America.
- Cleland, D.L. & Ireland, L.R. (2007). *Project Manager's Handbook*. McGraw-Hill Professional
- Cooper, D.R. & Schindler, P.S. (2022). Business Research Methods. 8th Edition, McGraw-Hill Irwin, Boston.
- Creswell, J. W. (2021). *Educational research: Planning, conducting, and evaluating quantitative and qualitative research* (4th ed.). Boston, MA: Pearson.
- Cunningham, W.J. (2020). *The Theory of Environmental Policy*. New York: Cambridge University Press.
- Danida, (2020). Lessons Learned Report; Kenyan Environmental Programme Support.

Nairobi.

- Darkoh, M. (2016). Kenya's Environment and Environmental Management. Journal of Eastern African Research & Development, 20, 1-40. Retrieved September 3, 2021, from http://www.jstor.org/stable/24326209
- Davies, M. (2018). Emotional intelligence: In search of an elusive construct. Journal of Personality and Social Psychology, 75(4), 989–1015.
- Donald K.K &Delno, L.A. (2006). *Proposal and Thesis writing*. Pauline's Publications. Africa.
- Garbutt, A. (2021). Monitoring and Evaluation; A Guide for Small and Diaspora NGOs. Internation NGO Training and Research Centre.
- GEF IEO. (2015). GEF Annual Performance Report 2015.
- GEF Secretariat. (2015). Global Environment Facility annual report.
- Gichamba,S. & Kithinji, C. (2019). Influence of environmental regulations in the performance of construction projects in Nairobi County, Kenya. International Academic Journal of Information Sciences and Project Management, 3(4), 184-209.
- Government of Kenya. (2021). Green Economy Strategy and Implementation Plan Kenya.
- Gunduz et.al., (2017). The Role of Environmental Education of New Curriculum in North Cyprus.
- Hill and Jones (2012). *Strengthening Kenya's Road and Rail Interfaces*, 2nd edition. Boston: http://lst-iiep.iiepunesco.org/cgibin/wwwi32.exe/[in=epidoc1.in]/?t2000=026636/(100).
- Hyvai, I., (2006). Success of Projects in Different Organizational Condition. Project Management Journal Vol. 37.
- IFAD (International Fund for Agricultural Development). (2002). *A Guide for Project M&E*. IFAD, Rome.
- IFAD. (2002). Practical Guide on Monitoring and Evaluation of Rural Development Projects. Rome.
- Ika, L.A., & Lytvynov, V. (2009). *RBM: a shift to managing development project objectives*. Journal of Global Business Administration 1 (1), 55 –76.
- Ika, L.A., (2009). Project success as a topic in project management journals. Project Management Journal 40 (4), 6-19.
- Ika, L.A., Diallo, A., & Thuillier, D. (2012). Project management in the international development industry: the project coordinator's perspective. International Journal of

Managing Projects in Business 3(1), 61 - 93.

- Ike, L. A., Diallo, A. & Thuillier, D. (2012). Critical Success Factors: An Empirical Investigation. International Journal of Project Management, 30 (2012) pp 105.
- Jones, N. et al. (2009). 'Improving Impact Evaluation Coordination and Use'. A Scoping study commissioned by the DFID Evaluation Department on behalf of NONIE (www.odi.org.uk/resources/download/3177.pdf). Retrieved June 15, 2011.
- Joyce, M., & Kirakowski, J. (2015). Measuring attitudes towards the Internet: The General Internet Attitude Scale. International Journal of Human-Computer Interaction, 31(8), 506–517.
- Kamau G. Charles, Humam Bin Mohamed. Efficacy of Monitoring and Evaluation Function in Achieving Project Success in Kenya: A Conceptual Framework. Science Journal of Business and Management. Vol. 3, No. 3, 2015, pp. 82-94. doi: 10.11648/j.sjbm.20150303.14

Kenya Innovation Survey Report. (2012).pdf. (n.d.).

- Kenya National Bureau of Statistics (2021). Kenya social development survey-Economic indicators, Paper (b). Nairobi.
- Kidombo, H. J. & Mwakajo, I. S. (2021). Factors influencing project performance: A case of county road infrastructural projects in Manyatta Constituency, Embu County, Kenya. International Academic Journal of Information Sciences and Project Management, 2(2), 111-123
- Kothari, C. R. (2015). *Research Methodology: Methods and Techniques*. New Delhi: New Age International Publishers.
- Kothari, C. R., & Garg, G. (2015). *Research Methods: Methods and Techniques*. New Delhi: New Age International (P) Limited.
- Lahey, R. (2015). The Canadian Monitoring and Evaluation System. PREM Notes and Special Series on the Nuts and Bolts of Government M&E Systems; No. 11. World Bank, Washington, DC.
- Leviton, L. C. (2003). Evaluation use: Advances, challenges and applications. American Journal of Evaluation, 24(4), 525–535.
- Lewis, S. (2015). *Qualitative inquiry and research design: Choosing among five approaches* (3rd ed.). Thousand Oaks, CA: Sage. Paperback, 472 pp. \$82. ISBN: 9781412995306.
- Lopez, Gladys A; Katia, Rivera; Lycia, Lima; Helen, Hwang. (2021). Challenges in

Monitoring and Evaluation: An Opportunity to Institutionalize M & E Systems. Washington D.C: IBRD.

- Meredith, Jack R., & Samuel J. (2010). *Project Management: A Managerial Approach* (7 Ed.). New York: John Wiley.
- Mibey, H. K. (2015). Factors affecting implementation of Monitoring and Evaluation Programs in KazikwaVijana Project by government ministries in Kakamega Central District, Kenya. (Unpublished Master's thesis). University of Nairobi.
- Moskal, B. M. (2000). "Scoring rubrics: What, when and how?" Practical Assessment, Research & Evaluation, 7 (3).
- Muchelule Yusuf., Mbawi Geofrey., & Muchelule Saada Achayo. (2017). Influence of Monitoring and Evaluation on Performance of Constituency Development Fund Projects in Kajiado East Sub-County, Kenya. The International Journal of Management Science and Information Technology (IJMSIT) Issue 23 -(Jan-Mar 2017) (12 - 26).
- Mugenda, O. M., & Mugenda, A. G. (2012). Research methods dictionary.
- Mugenda, O. Mugenda. (2019). *Research Methods: Quantitative and Qualitative Approaches*. Nairobi: ACTS.
- Mugenda, O.M. and Mugenda, A.G. (2003). Research Methods, Quantitative and Qualitative Approaches. Nairobi: ACTS.
- Mukhererjee, R. (2019). Action Plan: Monitoring and Evaluation Reporting and Research.
 Pretoria: Department of Basic Education and MIET Africa OECD, DAC (2005), 'Paris
 Declaration on Aid Effectiveness and the Accra Agenda for Action', (28; Paris: OECD).
- Mulandi, N. M. (2013). Factors influencing performance of monitoring and evaluation systems of non-governmental organizations in governance: A case of Nairobi, Kenya. (Unpublished Master's thesis). University of Nairobi.
- Murungi, M. N. (2016). Influence of project management practices on implementation of donor funded education projects in Kajiado County, Kenya. (Unpublished Master's thesis). University of Nairobi.
- Mushori, J. (2015). Determinants of effective monitoring and evaluation of county government- funded infrastructural development projects, Nakuru East Constituency, Nakuru County, Kenya. (Unpublished Master's thesis). University of Nairobi.

- Naidoo, I. A. (2011). The role of monitoring and evaluation in promoting good governance in South Africa: A case study of the Department of Social Development (Doctoral dissertation, University of Witwatersrand).
- Naidoo, R., Stuart-Hill, G., Weaver, L.C., Tagg, J., Davis, A. & Davidson, A. (2011). Effect of diversity of large wildlife species on financial benefits to local communities in northwest Namibia. Environmental and Resource Economics, doi:
- Nasambu, J. (2016). Factors Influencing the Performance of Monitoring and Evaluation Systems in Non-Government Organizations in Lira District, Northern Uganda. (Unpublished Master's thesis). Uganda Technology and Management University.
- Njeru, I. M. & Luketero, S. W. (2018). Influence of monitoring and evaluation strategies on performance of medical camp projects in hospitals in Kenya: A case of Embu North Sub County. International Academic Journal of Information Sciences and Project Management, 3(1), 61-73
- OECD (2012), *Education at a Glance 2012*: Highlights, OECD Publishing. http://dx.doi.org/10.1787/eag_highlights-2012-en
- Omunga, L., & Gitau, R. (2019). Influence of monitoring and evaluation on Performance of building construction projects in Nairobi City County, Kenya. The Strategic Journalof Business & Change Management, 6 (4), 480 – 496.
- Patton, M. Q. (2018). *Utilization-focused evaluation* (4th ed.). Thousand Oaks, CA: Sage Publications.
- Prabhakar, G. P. (2008). What is project success: A literature review? International Journal of Business and Management, 3(9), 3-10 Chin, W. (2012).
- Project Management Book of Knowledge, (2017). Project management an introduction. to monitoring and evaluation of projects. <u>http://knowledge.apm.org.uk.</u> PWS-KENT Publishing Co.
- Proudlock, K., Ramalingam, B., & Sandison, P. (2019). *Improving humanitarian impact* assessment: bridging theory and practice.
- Santin, O. (2019). The Effect of Occupancy and Building Characteristics on Energy Use for Space and Water Heating in Dutch Residential Stock. Energy and Buildings, 41, 1223- 1232.
- Saunders, M., Lewis, P. & Thornhill, A. (2019). *Research Methods for Business Students*. Pearson, New York.
- Sekaran, U. & Bougie, R. (2013). Research Methods for Business: A Skill-Building Approach.

6th Edition, Wiley, New York.

- Tuckman, B. C. (2022). *Conducting Educational Research*. New York: Harcourt Brace Jovanovich.
- University of Nairobi, (2013). University of Nairobi Plagiarism Policy. University of Nairobi.
- Vanesa W. & Gala D. (2015). Sound Expectations: From Impact Evaluations to Policy Change Center for the Implementation of Public Policies Promoting Equity and Growth (CIPPEC).
- Wachamba, E. W. (2019). Determinants of Effective Monitoring and Evaluation Systems in NGOs within Nairobi.
- Wambugu, L.N, Kyalo N.D, Mbii M, & Nyonje R.N (2015). Research Methods Theory
 &Practice 71-89. Weiner, Y. (1982). "Commitment in Organization: A Normative View". Academy of Management Review, 7, 418-428.
- Wernerfelt, B. (1984). A Resource-Based View of the Firm. Strategic Management Journal, 5(2), 171-180.
- World Bank, (2022). Participation in Project Preparation: Lessons from World Bank-assisted Projects in India. World Bank Discussion Papers
- World Bank, (2019). Key Performance Indicator Handbook. Washington, D.C.
- Yusuf Muchelule., Kevin Mulama., & Dr. Douglas Musiega., (2015). Correlation between Monitoring and Evaluation and Performance of Social Development Projects in Bunyala Sub County, International Journal of Innovative Research and Development.Vol.4, Issue4
Appendix I: Letter of Introduction



UNIVERSITY OF NAIROBI FACULTY OF BUSINESS AND MANAGEMENT SCIENCES OFFICE OF THE DEAN

Telegrams: "Varsity", Telephone: 020 491 0000 VOIP: 9007/9008 Mobile: 254-724-200311 P.O. Box 30197-00100, G.P.O. Nairobi, Kenya Email: <u>fob-graduatestudents@uonbi.ac.ke</u> Website: **business.uonbi.ac.ke**

Our Ref: L50/34667/2019

April 19, 2022

National Commission for Science, Technology and Innovation NACOSTI Headquarters Upper Kabete, Off Waiyaki Way P. O. Box 30623- 00100 **NAIROBI**

RE: INTRODUCTION LETTER: ATAKOS LORRAINE LEONIDA

The above named is a registered Master of Project Planning candidate at the University of Nairobi, Faculty of Business and Management Sciences. She is conducting research on *"Monitoring and Evaluation and Performance of Environmental Projects in Kenya: A case of a Selected Project at the Institute for Law and Environmental Governance."*.

The purpose of this letter is to kindly request you to assist and facilitate the student with necessary data which forms an integral part of the Project.

The information and data required is needed for academic purposes only and will be treated in **Strict-Confidence**.

Your co-operation will be highly appreciated.

PROF. JAMES NJIHIA DEAN, FACULTY OF BUSINESS AND MANAGEMENT SCIENCES

JN/pgr

Appendix II: NACOSTI Research Permit

Retienel Commision for Science, Technology and Innovation -	National Commision for Science, Technology and Innovation -
National States of Science, Tachnology and Innevation -	Kabienal Commizion for States, Technology and Innevation -
Neth - 38 - (For Science, Technology and Innevation -	Retienel Commizion for NACOSIC Schnology and Innovation -
Neti 22 For Science, Technology and Innovation -	Retionel Commizion for So. 1. Oct. 1. Innovetion -
Ret Provident for Science, Tacknelogy and Innevation -	National Commission For
Petional Commizion for Science, Technology and Innevation -	Retirns ConSCIENCE, TECHNOLOGY & INNOVATION
National Commizion for Science, Tachnology and Innovation -	National Commizion for Science, Technology and Innovation -
Retional Commizion for Science, Technology and Innovation -	National Commision for Science, Technology and Innovation -
Retional Commission for Science, Technology and Innevation - Ref No: 132804	National Commizion for Science, Tachnology and Inneration- Date of Issue: 09/May/2022
Wetienel Commizion for Science, Technology and Innovation -	Retienel Commizion for Science, Technology and Innovation -
Petional Commizion for Science, Tachnology and Inne RESEARC	H LICENSEmmizian for Science, Tacknology and Innevation -
Retional Commizion for Science, Technology and Innov	Commizion for Science, Tachnology and Innevation -
Retional Commizion for Science, Tachnology and Innov	emmizion for Science, Tachnology and Innevation -
Retionel Commizion for Science, Technology and Innov	emmizien for Sciance, Tachnelegy and Innevatien -
National Commizion for Science, Technology and Innov	emmizion for Science, Technology and Innevation -
Retional Commision for Science, Technology and Innev	emmizien fer Science, Tachnology and Innovation -
Retional Commizion for Science, Technology and Inney	emmizien fer Science, Tachnology and Innevation -
Retional Commision for Science, Technology and Innov	ammizian for Science, Tacknology and Innevation -
National Commizion for Science, Tacknology and Innev	emmizion for Science, Technology and Innevation -
Retienel Commision for Science, Technology and Innovestor	esticity commision for Science, Tachnology and Innevation -
This is to Certify that Ms Leonida Lorraine Atakos of Universi the topic: MONITORING AND EVALUATION AND PERFOR CASE OF A SELECTED PROJECT AT THE INSTITUTE FOR period ending : 09/May/2023.	ty of Nairobi, has been licensed to conduct research in Nairobi on MANCE OF ENVIRONMENTAL PROJECTS IN KENYA: A & LAW AND ENVIRONMENTAL GOVERNANCE, for the metional commission for eclance, "Schnelogy and Inneution- tections," and the school of the school
This is to Certify that Ms Leonida Lorraine Atakos of Universi the topic: MONITORING AND EVALUATION AND PERFOR CASE OF A SELECTED PROJECT AT THE INSTITUTE FOR period ending : 09/May/2023.	ity of Nairobi, has been licensed to conduct research in Nairobi on MANCE OF ENVIRONMENTAL PROJECTS IN KENYA: A & LAW AND ENVIRONMENTAL GOVERNANCE. for the COSTUP/22/17314
This is to Certify that Ms Leonida Lorraine Atakos of Universi the topic: MONITORING AND EVALUATION AND PERFOR CASE OF A SELECTED PROJECT AT THE INSTITUTE FOR period ending: 09/May/2023. "Achieve and Innevenien - Metional Commission for Science, "Achieve and Innevenien - License No: NAC	ity of Nairobi, has been licensed to conduct research in Nairobi on MANCE OF ENVIRONMENTAL PROJECTS IN KENYA: A & LAW AND ENVIRONMENTAL GOVERNANCE. for the Retional Commission for Science, Technology and Innevation - COSTLP/22/17314 Metional Commission for Science, Technology and Innevation - Retional Commission for Science - Retional Commission for Science - Actional Commission - Retional - Retion
This is to Certify that Ms Leonida Lorraine Atakos of Universi the topic: MONITORING AND EVALUATION AND PERFOR CASE OF A SELECTED PROJECT AT THE INSTITUTE FOR period ending : 09/May/2023. "Schoology and Insection - Retional Commission for Science, "Schoology and Insection - License No: NAC Retional Commission for Science, Technology and Insection - Retional Commission for Science, Technology and Insection - Retional Commission for Science, Technology and Insection -	ity of Nairobi, has been licensed to conduct research in Nairobi on MANCE OF ENVIRONMENTAL PROJECTS IN KENYA: A & LAW AND ENVIRONMENTAL GOVERNANCE, for the Institute Commission for Science, Technology and Innevation - Institute Commission for Science, Technology and Innevation - National Commission for Science - Commission - Commiss
This is to Certify that Ms., Leonida Lorraine Atakos of Universit the topic: MONITORING AND EVALUATION AND PERFOR CASE OF A SELECTED PROJECT AT THE INSTITUTE FOR period ending: 09/May/2023. Achieves and Innection - Actional Commission for Science, Technology and Innection - License No: NAC Actional Commission for Science, Technology and Innection - Actional Commission for Science, Technology and Innection -	ity of Nairobi, has been licensed to conduct research in Nairobi on MANCE OF ENVIRONMENTAL PROJECTS IN KENYA: A R LAW AND ENVIRONMENTAL GOVERNANCE. for the Netional Commission for Science, Tachnelegy and Innevation - include of the Science, Tachnelegy and Innevation - Netional Commission for Science, Tachnelegy and Innevation -
This is to Certify that Ms., Leonida Lorraine Atakos of Universitive topic: MONITORING AND EVALUATION AND PERFORM CASE OF A SELECTED PROJECT AT THE INSTITUTE FOR period ending : 09/May/2023, Schnology and Insection - Metional Commission for Science, Technology and Insection - License No: NAC Metional Commission for Science, Technology and Insection - Metional Commission for Science, Technology and Insection - 132804 Metional Commission for Science, Technology and Insection -	ity of Nairobi, has been licensed to conduct research in Nairobi on MANCE OF ENVIRONMENTAL PROJECTS IN KENYA: A & LAW AND ENVIRONMENTAL GOVERNANCE. for the Retirent Commission for Science, Tachnology and Innevation - institute Commission for Science, Tachnology and Innevation - Retirent Commission for Science (Tachnology and Innevation -
This is to Certify that Ms Leonida Lorraine Atakos of Universit the topic: MONITORING AND EVALUATION AND PERFOR CASE OF A SELECTED PROJECT AT THE INSTITUTE FOR period ending : 09/May/2023. "Echnology and Innovation - Retional Commission for Science, Technology and Innovation - 132804 Retional Commission for Science, Technology and Innovation - Retional Commission for Science, Technology and Innovation -	 ity of Nairobi, has been licensed to conduct research in Nairobi on MANCE OF ENVIRONMENTAL PROJECTS IN KENYA: A & LAW AND ENVIRONMENTAL GOVERNANCE. for the Retional Commission for Science, Tachnelegy and Innevation - COSTUP/22/17314 Retional Commission for Science, Tachnelegy and Innevation - Retional Commission for Science Actional Commission - Retional Commission - Co
This is to Certify that Ms Leonida Lorraine Atakos of Universit the topic: MONITORING AND EVALUATION AND PERFOR CASE OF A SELECTED PROJECT AT THE INSTITUTE FOR period ending: 09/May/2023. Technology and Inneutrien - National Commission for Science, Technology and Inneutrien - License No: NAC Retional Commission for Science, Technology and Inneutrien - Retional Commission for Science, Technology and Inneutrien - Retional Commission for Science, Technology and Inneutrien - Isteinnal Commission for Science, Technology and Inneutrien - Isteinnal Commission for Science, Technology and Inneutrien - Isteinnal Commission for Science, Technology and Inneutrien - Retional Commission for Science, Technology and Inneutrien -	ity of Nairobi, has been licensed to conduct research in Nairobi on MANCE OF ENVIRONMENTAL PROJECTS IN KENYA: A & LAW AND ENVIRONMENTAL GOVERNANCE. for the retional commission for Science, Tachnology and Innevation - COSTUP/22/17314 Netional Commission for Science, Tachnology and Innevation - Retional Commission for Science, Tachnology and Innevation - NATIONAL COMMISSION FOR Retional Commission for Science, Technology & Science, Technolog
This is to Certify that Ms Leonida Lorraine Atakos of Universit the topic: MONITORING AND EVALUATION AND PERFOR CASE OF A SELECTED PROJECT AT THE INSTITUTE FOR period ending: 09/May/2023. "Schoology and Innovation - Retional Commission for Science, Technology and Innovation -	Ity of Nairobi, has been licensed to conduct research in Nairobi on MANCE OF ENVIRONMENTAL PROJECTS IN KENYA: A & LAW AND ENVIRONMENTAL GOVERNANCE. for the restance commission for Science, Tachnelegy and Innevation - instance commission for Science, Tachnelegy and Innevation - Restance Commission for Science, Tachnelegy and Innevation - NATIONAL COMMISSION FOR Restance Commission for Science INNOVATION Innevation -
This is to Certify that Ms. Leonida Lorraine Atakos of Universit the topic: MONITORING AND EVALUATION AND PERFOR CASE OF A SELECTED PROJECT AT THE INSTITUTE FOR period ending: 09/May/2023. Tachnology and Innovation - Rational Commission for Science, Tachnology and Innovation - License No: NAC Rational Commission for Science, Tachnology and Innovation - Rational Commission for Science, Tachnology and Innovation -	Ity of Nairobi, has been licensed to conduct research in Nairobi on MANCE OF ENVIRONMENTAL PROJECTS IN KENYA: A & LAW AND ENVIRONMENTAL GOVERNANCE. for the restance commission for Science, Technology and Innevetion - the control Commission for Science, Technology and Innevetion - Retional Commission for Science, Technology and Innevetion - National Commission for Science, Technology & Mon - Sciencel Commission for Science, Technology & Mon - Retional Commission for Science, INNOVATION Innevetion - Retional Commission for Science, Technology and Innevetion - Retional Commission for Science, Technology & Mon - Retional Commission for Science, Technology and Innevetion -
This is to Certify that Ms., Leonida Lorraine Atakos of Universit the topic: MONITORING AND EVALUATION AND PERFOR CASE OF A SELECTED PROJECT AT THE INSTITUTE FOR period ending: 09/May/2023. "Schoology and Innevation - Retional Commission for Science, Technology and Innevation - Eccense No: NAC Retional Commission for Science, Technology and Innevation - Retional Commission for Science, Technology and Innevation - 132804 Retional Commission for Science, Technology and Innevation - Retional Commission for Science, Technology and Innevation -	Ity of Nairobi, has been licensed to conduct research in Nairobi on MANCE OF ENVIRONMENTAL PROJECTS IN KENYA: A & LAW AND ENVIRONMENTAL GOVERNANCE. for the meticinal commission for Solance, Tachnology and Innevation - tational Commission for Solance, Tachnology and Innevation - National Commission for Science, Tachnology and Innevation - National Commission for Science, Tachnology & Don - National Commission for Science, Tachnology and Innevation - Nati
This is to Certify that Ms., Leonida Lorraine Atakos of Universit the topic: MONITORING AND EVALUATION AND PERFOR CASE OF A SELECTED PROJECT AT THE INSTITUTE FOR period ending: 09/May/2023. "Schoology and Innovation - Retional Commission for Science, Technology and Innovation - License No: NAC Retional Commission for Science, Technology and Innovation - Retional Commission for Science, Technology and Innovation - 132804 Retional Commission for Science, Technology and Innovation - Retional Commission for Science, Technology and Innovation -	ity of Nairobi, has been licensed to conduct research in Nairobi on MANCE OF ENVIRONMENTAL PROJECTS IN KENYA: A & LAW AND ENVIRONMENTAL GOVERNANCE. for the retrieval commission for Science, Tachnology and Innevation - instantic Commission for Science, Tachnology and Innevation - Retional Commission for Science, Tachnology and Innevation - National Commission for Science, Tachnology and Innevation - National Commission for Science, Tachnology and Innevation - National Commission for Science, Tachnology and Innevation - Retional Commission for Science, Tachnology and Innevation
This is to Certify that Ms.: Leonida Lorraine Atakos of Universite topic: MONITORING AND EVALUATION AND PERFOR CASE OF A SELECTED PROJECT AT THE INSTITUTE FOR Period ending : 09/May/2023. Schnology and Innovation - Retional Commission for Science, Tachnology and Innovation - Eccense No: NAC Retional Commission for Science, Tachnology and Innovation - Retional Commission for Science, Tachnology and Innovation - 132804 Retional Commission for Science, Tachnology and Innovation - Retional Commission for Science, Tachnology and Innovation -	ity of Nairobi, has been licensed to conduct research in Nairobi on MANCE OF ENVIRONMENTAL PROJECTS IN KENYA: A 2 LAW AND ENVIRONMENTAL GOVERNANCE. for the Retirent Commission for Science, Tachnology and Innevation - instant Commission for Science, Tachnology and Innevation - Retirent Commission for Science, Tachnology and Innevation - National Commission for Science, Tachnology and Innevation - National Commission for Science, Tachnology and Innevation - National Commission for Science, Tachnology and Innevation - Retirent Commission for Science, Tachnology and Innevation -
This is to Certify that Ms., Leonida Lorraine Atakos of Universitive topic: MONITORING AND EVALUATION AND PERFORM CASE OF A SELECTED PROJECT AT THE INSTITUTE FOR period ending : 09/May/2023. Schnology and Innovation - Mational Commission for Science, Technology and Innovation -	ity of Nairobi, has been licensed to conduct research in Nairobi on MANCE OF ENVIRONMENTAL PROJECTS IN KENYA: A 2 LAW AND ENVIRONMENTAL GOVERNANCE. for the retional Commission for Science, Technology and Innevation - instance Commission for Science, Technology and Innevation - Retional Commission for Science, Technology and Innevation - National Commission for Science, Technology and Innevation - National Commission for Science, Technology and Innevation - National Commission for Science, Technology and Innevation - Retional Commission for Science, Technology and Innevation -
This is to Certify that Ms.: Leonida Lorraine Atakos of Universitie topic: MONITORING AND EVALUATION AND PERFORM CASE OF A SELECTED PROJECT AT THE INSTITUTE FOR period ending: 09/May/2023. Schnology and Innovation - Retional Commission for Science, Technology and Innovation -	ity of Nairobi, has been licensed to conduct research in Nairobi on MANCE OF ENVIRONMENTAL PROJECTS IN KENYA: A 2 LAW AND ENVIRONMENTAL GOVERNANCE. for the retional Commission for Science, Tachnology and Innevation - Netional Commission for Science, Tachnology and Innevation -
This is to Certify that Ms.: Leonida Lorraine Atakos of Universite topic: MONITORING AND EVALUATION AND PERFORM CASE OF A SELECTED PROJECT AT THE INSTITUTE FOR Period ending: 09/May/2023. "Echnology and Innovation - Retional Commission for Science, Technology and Innovation -	ity of Nairobi, has been licensed to conduct research in Nairobi on MANCE OF ENVIRONMENTAL PROJECTS IN KENYA: A 2 LAW AND ENVIRONMENTAL GOVERNANCE. for the restance commission for Science, Technology and Innevation - Bational Commission for Science, Technology and Innevation - Retional Commission for Science, Technology and Innevation -
This is to Certify that Ms Leonida Lorraine Atakos of Universite topic: MONITORING AND EVALUATION AND PERFORM CASE OF A SELECTED PROJECT AT THE INSTITUTE FOR Period ending: 09/May/2023. "Echnology and Innovation - Mational Commission for Science, Technology and Innovation - Ectional Commission for Science, Technology and Innovation - Petional Commission for Science, Technology and Innovation - Mational Commission for Science, Technology and Innovation -	ity of Nairobi, has been licensed to conduct research in Nairobi on MANCE OF ENVIRONMENTAL PROJECTS IN KENYA: A 2 LAW AND ENVIRONMENTAL GOVERNANCE. for the restance commission for Science, Technology and Innevation - instance commission for Science, Technology and Innevation - National Commission for Science, Technology and Innevation -
This is to Certify that Ms. Leonida Lorraine Atakos of Universite topic: MONITORING AND EVALUATION AND PERFORM CASE OF A SELECTED PROJECT AT THE INSTITUTE FOR Period ending: 09/May/2023. "Echnology and Innovation - Mational Commission for Science, Technology and Innovation - Eccense No: NAC Perional Commission for Science, Technology and Innovation - Retional Commission for Science, Technology and Innovation -	ity of Nairobi, has been licensed to conduct research in Nairobi on MANCE OF ENVIRONMENTAL PROJECTS IN KENYA: A 2 LAW AND ENVIRONMENTAL GOVERNANCE. for the restinct Commission for Science, Technology and Innevetion - instant Commission for Science, Technology and Innevetion - Netional Commission for Science, Technology and Innevetion -
This is to Certify that Ms.: Leonida Lorraine Atakos of Universit the topic: MONITORING AND EVALUATION AND PERFOR CASE OF A SELECTED PROJECT AT THE INSTITUTE FOR period ending : 09/May/2023. Exchanging and Insection - Extinuel Commission for Science, Technology and Insection - Extense Commission for Science, Technology and Insection - Petional Commission for Science, Technology and Insection - Tectional Commission for Science, Technology and Insection - Tectional Commission for Science, Technology and Insection - 132804 Petional Commission for Science, Technology and Insection - Petional Commission	ity of Nairobi, has been licensed to conduct research in Nairobi on MANCE OF ENVIRONMENTAL PROFECTS IN KENYA: A 2 LAW AND ENVIRONMENTAL GOVERNANCE. for the restance Commission for Science, Technology and Innevation - Retional Commission for Science, Technology and Innevation -
This is to Certify that Ms Leonida Lorraine Atakos of Universite topic: MONITORING AND EVALUATION AND PERFORM CASE OF A SELECTED PROJECT AT THE INSTITUTE FOR Period ending: 09/May/2023. "Echnology and Innovation - Retional Commission for Science, Technology and Innovation - 132804 Retional Commission for Science, Technology and Innovation - Retional Commission for Science, Technology and Innova	ity of Nairobi, has been licensed to conduct research in Nairobi on MANCE OF ENVIRONMENTAL PROJECTS IN KENYA: A RELEASE Commission for Science, Technology and Innovation - Retional Commission for Science Commission f
This is to Certify that Ms Leonida Lorraine Atakos of Universite topic: MONITORING AND EVALUATION AND PERFORM CASE OF A SELECTED PROJECT AT THE INSTITUTE FORM period ending: 09/May/2023. Technology and Innevation - Retional Commission for Science, Technology and Innevation -	ity of Nairobi, has been licensed to conduct research in Nairobi on MANCE OF ENVIRONMENTAL PROJECTS IN KENYA: A R LAW AND ENVIRONMENTAL GOVERNANCE. for the restance commission for Science, Technology and Inneustion - Retional Commission for Science, Technology and Inneustion - m - Retional Commission for Science, Technology and Inneustion - m - Retional Commission for Science, Technology and Inneustion - Mational Commission for Science, Technology and Inneustion - Mational Commission for Science, Technology and Inneustion - Mational Commission for Science, Technology and Inneustion - Retional Commission for Science, Technology and Inne

Appendix III: Research questionnaire

Instructions: Kindly complete this questionnaire as honestly and objectively as possible. Tick or mark ($\sqrt{}$) your options in the appropriate box and fill in the blank spaces provided for questions where detailed answers are required. Please use the space at the back of this questionnaire if you need more space for your responses. The responses you give will be treated with utmost confidentiality.

Section A: Background Information
1. What is your gender?
Male []
Female []
2. What is your age bracket?
Below 25 years []
26-35 years []
36-45 years []
46-55 years []
Above 55 years []

3. What is your highest academic qualification? Diploma []

Degree []

Postgraduate []

Other (specify)

4. How long have you worked with Institute for Law and Environmental Governance?

Below 1 year []

1-2 years []

3-4 years []

5 years and above []

Section B: Expertise

5. What monitoring and evaluation training do you possess? Certificate Level []

Diploma level []

Degree [] Postgraduate [] Other (specify)

6. (i) Are you able to collect primary data M&E data from environmental projects within the required time?

YES [] NO []

(ii) Please explain your answer in 6 (i) above.

.....

7. In the following table, kindly rate using a scale of 1-5, where 5 is strongly agree and 1 is strongly disagree, the following statements in regard to expert in M&E. Kindly pick a response that honestly reflects your view.

	Statements					
		Strongly	Agree	Neutral	Disagree	Strongly
i.	Level of education enhances quality of M&E data derived from environmental projects					
ii.	Number of years of experience influence the performance of environmental projects					
iii.	The number of human resources enhances the M&E process					
iv.	Educational level improves utilization of M&E information			24		
V.	Experience in M&E promotes cost-effectiveness in environmental projects					

Section C: Stakeholder participation

8. Do you think that stakeholders play a role in M&E in environmental projects?

- YES []
- NO[]

9. If YES above, kindly explain

.....

10. In the following table, kindly use a scale of 1-5 where 5 is strongly agree and 1 is strongly disagree the statements in regard to stakeholder participation in M&E. Kindly pick a response that honestly reflects your view.

	Statements	Strongly	Agree	Neutral	Disagree	Strongly
i.	The number of stakeholders in M&E process is adequate					
ii.	Involvement of stakeholders in M&E decision making enhances projects performance					
iii.	Engaging stakeholders in choosing M&E indicators improves quality of M&E data					
iv.	Engaging stakeholders in data collection, reporting and sharing information ensures documentation and lesson learnt					
v.	Frequent meetings with stakeholders in the M&E process is essential					
vi.	Stakeholders are involved in all levels of the M&E process					

Section D: Project Budget

11. In the following table, kindly rate using a scale of 1-5 where 5 is strongly agree and 1 is strongly disagree the statements in regard to project capacity building. Kindly pick a response that honestly reflects your view.

01				14	-		
	Statements	Strongly	Agree	Neutral	Disagree	Strongly Disagree	
i.	Financing for environmental projects is adequate						
ii.	Budget determines duration and frequency of M&E						
iii.	The number of staff and experts trained enhance quality of M&E data						
iv.	Cost estimates for carrying out project activities are adequate						
v.	There are enough earmarking resources						

Section E: M&E Structure

12. In the following table, kindly rate using a scale of 1-5 where 5 is strongly agree and 1 is strongly disagree the statements in regard to project communication. Kindly pick a response that honestly reflects your view.

	Statements	Strongly	Agree	Neutral	Disagree	Strongly
i.	The departmental structure is effective and efficient	01				
ii.	The plans and tools ensure utilization of M&E information					
iii.	The number of the team contributes towards the success of environmental projects					
iv.	The regularly review meetings ensure utilization of M&E information which promotes learning					

v.	The number of plans/tools are adequate and enhance			
	compliance with project plans			

Section F: Performance of environmental projects.

13. In the following table, kindly rate using a scale of 1-5 where 5 is strongly agree and 1 is strongly disagree, the statements in regard to malaria vector control project. Kindly pick a response that honestly reflects your view.

	Statements	Strongly	Agree	Agree	Neutral	Disagree	Strongly
i.	The level of stakeholder satisfaction on environmental project is significant						
ii.	There is significant cost performance index in the project						
iii.	There is high level of project sustainability						
iv.	The quality of environmental projects in the organization is high						
v.	There is a general acceptance of project output by the stakeholders						

14. Suggest ways through which monitoring, and evaluation can be used to enhance the performance of environmental projects in Kenya.

Appendix IV: Interview schedule

I. Opening

- a) (Establish Rapport) My name is_
- (Rationale) I would like to ask you some questions about your background, your education, your profession, and some experiences you have had with environmental projects in Kenya.
- c) (**Inspiration**) I hope to use this information to help determine the influence of monitoring and evaluation on the performance of environmental projects at the Institute for Law and Environmental Governance.
- d) (**Timeline**) The interview should take approximately 10 15 minutes. Are you available to respond to some questions now?

(Transition: Let me begin by asking you some questions about your age bracket)

II Body

- a) (Topic) General Information on the respondent (as appropriate)
- b) (Topic) Research Questions
- c) Performance of environmental projects.
 - i. Level of stakeholder satisfaction
 - ii. Cost performance index
 - iii. Level of project sustainability
- d) Questions on Expertise in M&E
 - i. Level of education
 - ii. Number of years of experience
 - iii. Number of human resources
- e) Questions on stakeholder participation
 - i. Frequency of stakeholder meetings
 - ii. Level of involvement
 - iii. Number of stakeholders
- f) Questions on Project budget
 - i. Number of staff trained
 - ii. Expenses balancing
 - iii. Cost estimates
- g) Questions on M&E structure
 - i. Number of M&E plans/tools
 - ii. M&E team composition
 - iii. Frequency of M&E review meetings
- (**Transition:** Well, it has been a pleasure engaging you. Let me briefly summarize the information that I have recorded during our interview.)
- III Closing

A.	(Summarize) You are professionally	your
	experiences in environmental projects are	your
	opinion on monitoring and evaluation and environmen	tal projects are

B (Maintain Rapport) I appreciate the time you took for this interview. Do you have any additional information that you think would be helpful for me to know so that I can successfully execute this study?

C (Action to be taken) I should have all the information I need. Would it be alright to contact you at another time if I have any more queries or clarification?

Thank you.

"THE END"